
 
 

 

 

 

 

November 18, 2010 

 

CITIZEN ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

 

 

 

Agenda Item No. 5 

 

Committee Notebook Materials 
 

 

 

 

NOTE: Three-ring binders will be provided to Citizen Advisory Committee members, for the 

keeping of these and future materials. 

 



 

 

 

Citizen Advisory Committee Main Notebook 
Table of Contents 

 
 
Table of Contents 

 

Project Information 

 Project Background Report 

 Project Timeline 

 Council Principles 

 Staff Contacts 

 

Citizen Advisory Committee 

 Citizen Advisory Committee Members 

 Citizen Advisory Committee Operating Guidelines 

 Protocols for City of Bellevue Boards, Commissions, Committees and Task Forces 

 

Meeting Information 

 Citizen Advisory Committee Engagement 

 

Council Briefing Materials 

 January 19 – Study Session 

 February 1 – Management Brief 

 Council Minutes 

 

Maps of Eastgate/I-90 Corridor Project Area 

 

Public Involvement 

 Public Involvement Plan 

 

Additional Resources 

 Work products and information located on project website 

 



1 | P a g e  
 

 
 
 

Background Report 
 
 
Project Summary 
 
The Eastgate/I-90 area is one of Bellevue’s major employment centers with long-time businesses both large 
and small.  It provides jobs for nearly one-fifth of the city’s total workforce.  It is home to Bellevue College, 
the third-largest institution of higher learning in the State.  The area is a gateway for the city, and the 
neighborhoods nearby rely on it for convenient access to education, mobility, and services.  The project will 
create a vision for this vital part of Bellevue.  It will look at land use, transportation, and urban design in the 
corridor.  The project will also consider transportation issues and impacts in the surrounding area.  The 
project will help ensure that this area continues to be economically viable, provide a mix of services to the 
community, and be a significant and vibrant contributor to Bellevue’s economic health in the coming 
decades.  
 

Planning Context 
 
The Eastgate/I-90 Land Use and Transportation Project addresses land use and transportation issues and 
opportunities in portions of three planning subareas: Eastgate, Richards Valley and Factoria.  While the 
primary focus of the project will be along the I-90 corridor, any land use or transportation changes along this 
corridor could have impacts that extend into surrounding neighborhoods.  Further, the Eastgate area 
contains a large area of unincorporated King County which will likely annex to Bellevue in the next few years. 
Three geographic areas are therefore identified to help clarify both the extent and limits of this project: 
Primary Study Area, Transportation Influence Zone, and Potential Annexation Areas.  
 

  



2 | P a g e  
 

Primary Study Area 
 
This area is the primary focus of the corridor evaluation. It generally includes the commercial, institutional, 
and industrial properties along both sides of I-90, and contains portions of the Eastgate, Richards Valley, and 
Factoria planning subareas.  The primary study area generally extends from I-405 to 161st Avenue SE and 
from SE 26th Street to SE 38th Street.   
 
It contains a total area of 633 acres, 504 acres north of I-90 and 129 acres south of I-90. Any land use 
changes that would result from the corridor evaluation would occur within this area. In addition, the primary 
study area extends eastward along I-90 to and including the Lakemont Boulevard Interchange area for 
transportation analysis only, and also includes the Mountains to Sound Greenway corridor along I-90. 
 
Transportation Influence Zone 
 
This broadly drawn area includes neighborhoods north and south of the primary study area, and captures 
key transportation relationships with the primary study area. This zone of influence is not intended to have a 
fixed boundary, but rather encompasses the general area where key transportation impacts and mitigation 
should be evaluated and considered. The extent of this zone will be further defined as more analysis is 
undertaken as the Project proceeds. 
 
Though no land use changes are envisioned in this area, residents within the area may be particularly 
interested in or feel impacted by land use and transportation changes in the primary study area. While the 
south portion of Bellevue College falls in the primary study area, due to a greater concentration of college 
buildings and activities on the south portion and that area’s proximity to adjacent non-residential uses, the 
north portion lies outside the primary study area (but within the transportation influence zone) as it has a 
greater relationship to nearby residential areas. 
 
Potential Annexation Area 
 
A large area of unincorporated King County lies south/ southeast of the primary study area. Overwhelmingly 
residential in character, it is expected that this area will annex to the city of Bellevue in the next few years. 
Because of its proximity, it bears a geographical relationship to the primary study area. However, it 
encompasses a different set of issues that will be examined as part of the annexation process, which will be 
an effort that runs in parallel with the corridor evaluation. 
 

Project Rationale 
 
Comprehensive Plan Policy ED-19 recognizes the need to "Maintain and update integrated land use and 
transportation plans to guide the future of the City's major commercial areas and help them respond to 
change". It further establishes as a Goal "To maintain the quality of older commercial areas, promoting 
redevelopment and revitalization as needed to maintain their vitality."  This may entail planning for new 
uses and urban forms, developing incentives and other strategies to promote re-investment, and targeting 
investments in public infrastructure to help support new private sector development.   
 
While acknowledging the city’s limited capacity to fund major new infrastructure to support land use 
changes, the Council concluded that this project needs to proceed now.  In addition to the general 
Comprehensive Plan direction to maintain and update land use and transportation plans for the City's major 
commercial areas, the following are specific rationales for the project moving forward at this time:  
 
 Need to plan holistically rather than piecemeal. Several property owners in the study area have 

approached the city in recent years, expressing interest in redeveloping their properties in ways not 
envisioned by current land use policies and regulations. The Eastgate/l-90 Land Use and Transportation 
Project would allow the area to be studied holistically rather than in fragmented fashion.  
 

 Erosion of neighborhood services. Recent market trends have seen the replacement of neighborhood-
oriented services, such as the former Safeway grocery store in the Sunset Village Shopping Center, 
with other uses including automobile sales. The study will include an evaluation of market forces and 
opportunities for the future.  
 



3 | P a g e  
 

 Transportation "choke points" and the need to achieve better efficiencies in the state system. Several 
intersections within the study area (particularly in the west end near Factoria, and near access points 
with I-90) have high levels of congestion now, and are expected to have even higher levels of congestion 
by 2030. The project will look at ways of improving traffic flow throughout the area, including solutions 
linked with potential land use changes. With regard to the state system, WSDOT's recently completed 
Draft I-90 Corridor Study includes I-90 eastbound and westbound auxiliary lane and arterial 
channelization as improvements in its Eastgate area recommendations. The City's work will examine 
these proposed improvements in more detail, and we will work with WSDOT on finding ways to 
maximize benefits of potential I-90 corridor improvements to address City "choke points" and improve 
overall transportation mobility in the Eastgate area.  
 

 Lack of connectivity across the Eastgate corridor. Access into the I-90 Business Park and the 
businesses along SE 30

th
 and SE 32

nd
 Streets are compromised by a "one-way in and one-way out" 

street design. Limited access points result in out-of direction travel and heavy vehicle traffic along roads 
(Richards Road and Eastgate Way) that access these locations. Unconnected streets also make it very 
difficult to walk and bicycle through the community and to operate efficient and direct transit services to 
the array of destinations in the Eastgate area. This project provides an opportunity to improve street 
connectivity for the benefit of all modes of transportation.  
 

 Mountains to Sound Greenway. The I-90 corridor is an important and unfinished link in the Mountains to 
Sound Greenway (MTS) that stretches from central Washington to the Seattle waterfront. The project 
provides an opportunity to integrate MTS planning with other mobility and recreational features of the 
corridor.  
 

 Need for a more coherent image. The Eastgate corridor is a major gateway to Bellevue, yet it lacks a 
coherent urban design and image. This project is an opportunity to create a stronger and more 
attractive unifying image for the area.  

 
 Bellevue College evolution. Bellevue College's evolution toward a four-year institution will have land 

use and transportation implications, and could provide opportunities for shared community recreational 
or other civic resources.  

 
These and other considerations were endorsed by the City Council in a set of Council Principles which will 
provide direction to the Steering Committee, staff, and commissions in their work over the course of this 
project. 
 

Project Objectives 
 
This project has the following key objectives: 
 
1. Identify a preferred long-term land use and transportation vision for the Eastgate/I-90 corridor that:  

 Provides clear and deliberate direction for the area's future land use and zoning.  
 Enhances the economic vitality and diversity of this area and of the city as a whole.  
 Provides for neighborhood-oriented retail and services.  
 Maintains adequate mobility and promotes alternative modes of transportation, with reduced 

emissions of Greenhouse Gases.  
 
2. Identify multi-modal transportation improvements for the area that:  

 Address future congestion and improve safety for all users.  
 Expand travel choices.  
 Prioritize "low costlhigh impact" transportation improvements, recognizing the City'S fiscal 

constraints in funding expansive new transportation improvements.  
 
3. Promote a stronger identity and urban design image for this area, recognizing its prominent location 

on the Mountains to Sound Greenway.  
 
4. Support Bellevue College in its efforts to become a four-year institution, by planning for college-related 

residential growth, ensuring adequate transportation infrastructure, and pursuing opportunities for 
sharing community recreational or other civic resources.  



4 | P a g e  
 

Inter-jurisdictional Coordination 
 
There will be significant inter-jurisdictional issues relating to this project.   
 
The preliminary recommendations from the Washington State Department of Transportation I-90 Corridor 
Study include: an eastbound auxiliary lane from 150

th
 Avenue SE to West Lake Sammamish Parkway SE; 

a westbound auxiliary lane from SR 900 to 150
th
 Avenue SE; conversion of existing I-90 HOV lanes to 

High Occupancy Toll (HOT) lanes; channelization / signal improvements at 150
th
 Avenue SE / SE 37

th
 

Street (Intersection 227); Eastgate Way / 156
th
 Avenue SE (Intersection 86); Eastgate Way / 161

st
 Avenue 

SE; and roundabout improvements on West Lake Sammamish Parkway SE at 180
th
 Avenue SE.  When 

the study is complete in early-2010, WSDOT will incorporate the list of projects into the Puget Sound 
Regional Council (PSRC) Transportation Plan and the Washington Transportation Plan. The projects 
could be implemented over the next 20 years if funding becomes available.  There is a need to coordinate 
Bellevue’s Eastgate/I-90 Land Use and Transportation Project with WSDOT’s I-90 Corridor Study to 
improve regional access and improve transportation efficiency. 
 
The following changes in the Eastgate area, over the past six years, have resulted in significant transit 
ridership gains: (i) In July 2004, King County Metro opened a 1,400 stall parking garage at the Eastgate 
Park and Ride, for a total of 1,646 parking stalls; (ii) In October 2006, WSDOT and Sound Transit opened 
the Eastgate Direct Access Ramps, HOV on and off-ramps in the I-90 median, connecting to the existing 
142nd Place SE bridge; and, (iii) Bellevue College, adjacent to the Eastgate Park and Ride, has also 
expanded its campus facilities to accommodate the 35,000 students it serves annually.  As a result, the 
number of weekday transit patrons in the Eastgate study area increased by approximately 6,300 (ons and 
offs), from 2,400 in Fall 2000 to 8,700 in Fall 2008, a 269% increase.  Additional coordination with both 
Sound Transit and King County Metro is needed to build on the existing transit market in the area. 

 
Another important component of the project will be to identify a preferred high capacity transit (HCT) route 
and stations for the study area.  In 2014-15, Sound Transit is slated to begin engaging in Phase 3 
planning for HCT system expansion in East King County.  This project offers an opportunity for Bellevue 
to shape how HCT could improve mobility within the corridor, while supporting desirable land use change.   
 
The City of Issaquah is in the process of a conducting a similar land use and transportation planning 
project called the Central Issaquah Plan.  The land use recommendations being considered in this project 
are expected to be much higher than what is presently assumed by the PSRC in its regional land 
use/transportation model.  The development could result in a plan for taller buildings, residences and 
better mass transit on land now occupied by low-slung offices, automotive services and acres of self-
storage units.  The Eastgate/I-90 Land Use and Transportation Project team will coordinate with the 
Central Issaquah Plan team when considering projects of common interest to both jurisdictions (e.g., I-90 
mainline operations, ST-3 HCT planning, and Mountains to Sound Greenway Trail development 
opportunities). 

 
  



5 | P a g e  
 

Project Scope of Work 
(Approved by Council, 2-1-2010) 
 
The project scope will involve the following major elements: 
 
 Economic and market analysis. With the help of consultants, the existing employment and business 

mix in the area will be evaluated, and long-term growth prospects for the area will be analyzed for a 
variety of land uses.   
 

 Land use alternatives. Based in part on analysis of the area’s constraints and opportunities, the 
economic/market analysis, input from community stakeholders, and other factors, land use 
alternatives will be generated for additional analysis. 

 
 Transportation analysis. Any revised future land use vision for the corridor will require regional 

access, adequate circulation within the area, and mitigation of impacts to surrounding areas.  The 
transportation impacts of each land use alternative will be modeled and evaluated.  The results of this 
analysis will help identify a preferred land use alternative, with an appropriate package of multi-modal 
transportation strategies. 

 
 Early consideration of ST-3 improvements for I-90 corridor.  Staff is not expecting work on ST-3 to 

proceed during the tenure of this project, and it is currently unclear whether it is reasonable to 
assume that light rail extensions along this corridor could be implemented by 2030, which is the 
timeframe for this study.  However, it is to the City’s advantage to consider the impacts and benefits 
of potential transit corridors as part of this planning effort.  Preliminary discussions will take place with 
the City of Issaquah, Sound Transit, and other agencies on potentially desirable high capacity transit 
routes and station locations in advance of the Sound Transit ST-3 study.  

 
 Greenhouse gas and health impact analysis.  In accord with Washington State greenhouse gas 

(GHG) reductions goals, the plan will explore means to reduce GHG emissions in the study area.  In 
addition, grant opportunities will be explored that would allow the project to assess the health impacts 
that could result from land use and transportation changes. 

 
 Selection of a preferred alternative.  Based on the evaluation of alternatives and public input, a 

preferred alternative will be selected.  The preferred potential development patterns will be refined 
and illustrated.  In addition to land use and urban amenities, the preferred alternative will include the 
transportation improvements needed to accommodate the vision, and strategies to minimize impacts 
to surrounding areas. 

 
 Integrated GMA planning and SEPA environmental review. This concept emphasizes beginning 

environmental review as early in the planning process as possible so that environmental 
considerations can effectively inform the development and evaluation of project alternatives, and 
create a more efficient SEPA process. 

 
 Financing and implementation strategies.  A financial strategy will be prepared to guide funding of the 

transportation, urban amenities and other improvements needed to realize the preferred alternative. 
 

 
  



6 | P a g e  
 

Project Launch 
 
The project launch occurred in winter 2010, with briefings to and stakeholder discussions with various 
interest groups on the project principles, scope, schedule, and public involvement plan.  Reflected below 
are the dates of various events leading up to the first Citizen Advisory Committee meeting:  

 
 January 19 – City Council Study Session 

 February 1 – City Council Management Brief 

 February 2 – Project Webpage 

 Mid-February – IYC Article #1: Project Launch 

 March 10 – Planning Commission Presentation 

 March 11 - Bellevue Chamber of Commerce Presentation 

 March 11 – Transportation Commission Presentation 

 March 31 – Public Open House #1: Public Scoping (Project and SEPA) Event 

 May 11 – Parks Board Presentation 

 July 28 – Economic Development Forum 

 October 25 – City Council Approval of Citizen Advisory Committee membership 
 
 

Project Timeline 
 
As noted in the project timelines, the project is expected to be concluded in 2011.   
 
The project will be guided by a Citizen Advisory Committee (CAC) made up of members of City Boards 
and Commissions, and representatives from the study area and surrounding community.  The mission of 
this group will be to advise and make recommendations to the City Council on the project.  At the 
completion of the Citizen Advisory Committee’s work, the Planning Commission will help develop and 
review any Comprehensive Plan or Land Use Code changes needed to implement the CAC’s 
recommendation.   
 
The planning process will include extensive public involvement with residents, business owners and other 
stakeholders in addressing urban design, land use, and transportation issues.  A parallel effort will 
engage residents and property owners in the unincorporated part of Eastgate in an exploration of issues 
surrounding annexation to Bellevue.  The study will result in potential changes to land use and zoning; 
and identification of multimodal transportation enhancements to support the updated land use vision.  
 
 
  



7 | P a g e  
 

   



8 | P a g e  
 

 
Council Principles  
(Approved by Council, 2-1-2010) 
 
The following Council Principles are intended to provide consistent direction over the course of this 
project. An over-arching consideration that cuts across all these Principles is the reality of fiscal 
constraints that limit the City’s ability to fund major new infrastructure projects. To the extent that new 
infrastructure is needed to support potential land use changes, costs and ability to fund these 
improvements must be serious and early considerations.   

 
1. Enhance the Eastgate corridor’s economic vitality without degrading mobility in other parts of the City, 

and ensure that it continues to contribute to the diversity of the City’s economic mix.   
 

2. Retain and enhance neighborhood-oriented services and businesses, which are important to nearby 
residents of Bellevue and the adjacent Eastgate potential annexation area.   
 

3. Improve linkages with Bellevue College, which may include land use and transportation strategies, as 
well as a variety of partnerships that benefit both the College and the City as a whole.  
 

4. Better integrate land use and transportation across Eastgate, which may include consideration of 
transit-oriented development in portions of the area.  Changes in land use should be informed by 
transportation opportunities and impacts.  For example, the large Eastgate park and ride facility may 
create an opportunity for a transit overlay district, with well integrated land use and transportation 
performance.  
 

5. Continue to evolve Eastgate’s transportation infrastructure to a high performing, multi-modal system, 
including coordinating with service providers on increased transit service to the area. 
 

6. Increase connectivity across the Eastgate corridor, addressing the area’s numerous barriers such as 
its limited street and non-motorized (both pedestrian and bicycle) network, and stand-alone 
developments. 
 

7. Model environmental sustainability in planning for Eastgate’s future, so that future plans for the area 
produce measurable environmental benefits. 
 

8. Improve the Eastgate Corridor’s urban design quality and coherence, recognizing the area as a major 
City gateway and prominent location on the Mountain to Sound Greenway. 
 

9. Work to improve the performance of state facilities in the area – I-90 and its access points—which 
today create major issues for the City’s land use and arterial system. 

  



9 | P a g e  
 

Staff Contact List 
 
Name Department  Phone E-Mail 

Dan Stroh PCD 425-452-5255 dstroh@bellevuewa.gov  

Michael Bergstrom PCD 425-452-6866 mbergstrom@bellevuewa.gov  

Goran Sparrman Transportation 425-452-4338 gsparrman@bellevuewa.gov  

Kevin O’Neill Transportation 425-452-4064 koneill@bellevuewa.gov  

Franz Loewenherz Transportation 425-452-4077 floewenherz@bellevuewa.gov  

Michael Paine DSD  425-452-2739 mpaine@bellevuewa.gov  

         
  

mailto:dstroh@bellevuewa.gov
mailto:mbergstrom@bellevuewa.gov
mailto:gsparrman@bellevuewa.gov
mailto:koneill@bellevuewa.gov
mailto:floewenherz@bellevuewa.gov
mailto:mpaine@bellevuewa.gov


1 | P a g e  
 

 
 

 

Citizen Advisory Committee Members 
 
 
Commission and Board Representatives 
 
Name Qualifications 

Jay Hamlin 
(Planning 
Commission) 

BA Urban Planning, 1978, University of Washington; Certificate of strategic 
specialization in Program Management, 1996, University of Denver; Resident of 
Bellevue for 27 years; Employed at Microsoft for 13 years, currently Principal 
Lead Program Manager in the Server and Tools Division; Bellevue Planning 
Commissioner since July 2009; Former Trustee of The Little School. 

Francois Larrivee 
(Transportation 
Commission) 

Transportation Commission member, transportation professional, employed by 
Hopelink, resident of Woodridge neighborhood. 

John Stokes 
(Parks Board) 

We moved to Bellevue in 1991 from Dallas and have lived since then in 
Woodridge. Our daughter graduated from Bellevue High and the University of 
Washington. Have been involved in every school bond and levy since 1993 and 
served nine years as a Bellevue Schools Foundation Trustee and am still a BSF 
committee member. Was PTSA Bellevue Council President and served on the 
State PTA Board of Directors and am still active in PTA.  After a long career as 
an attorney in private practice and government service, I retired in 2008 and am 
engaged in education advocacy at the local and state level, and am currently 
the Treasurer of the Eastside Heritage Center and Secretary/Treasurer of the 
Friends of the Cedar River Watershed.  I led the parent and PTSA campaign for 
the recent Bellevue Parks Levy, and am serving my second year on the 
Bellevue Parks & Community Services Board. 

 
At-Large Members 
 

Name Qualifications 

Carrie Courter 
Blanton 

Carrie C. Blanton is the Real Estate Director for the Courter Corporate Group 
responsible for numerous properties including the Honda Auto Center of 
Bellevue and Newport Heights office building located along I-90. Growing up in 
Bellevue, Carrie attended Sammamish High School then went on to earn a 
Bachelor’s degree from University of Arizona.  Carrie and her family are involved 
on the Bellevue College Foundation Board and Carrie manages the Courter 
Family Scholarship. She resides in Bellevue with her husband, Will and two 
daughters. 

Tom Bohman 1989 - present, Senior Director with Cushman & Wakefield/Commerce, a 
commercial real estate company. Specializing in office leasing and Investment 
sales in the greater Eastside and Seattle. Actively involved in leasing office 
space on the I-90 Corridor.  Native of Bellevue, currently lives in the Enatai area. 
Active member of Bellevue Rotary and has served on Non-profit boards of 
directors. BA in Business Administration (WSU) and MBA in Finance (Seattle 
University) 

Lindy Bruce I have lived in Bellevue in the College Hill/Skyridge neighborhood of West Lake 
Hills for 21 years. For the past 13 years, I have served on the Sunset Community 
Association as Secretary/Newsletter Editor. I have frequently spoken before the 
City Council and various commissions on behalf of the interests of our 
neighborhoods. Previously I served on the West Lake Hills Citizen Advisory 
Committee and the Ped-Bike advisory group. 



2 | P a g e  
 

Dave Elliott 20-plus years commercial real estate experience. Extensive knowledge of 
current commercial market conditions on the Eastside.  Former Member and 
two-time Chair, Bellevue Transportation Commission (1997-2005) and Eastgate 
I-90 Corridor Study member (2001-2002) while serving as Chair of 
Transportation Commission. Member of original 1989-1992 East Bellevue 
Transportation Study (EBTS). Member and past Chair - Metro Transit's 'Transit 
Advisory Commission' (2005-2010).  25-year homeowner in Eastgate/Spiritridge 
neighborhood; current Board Member of Homeowners' Association. 

Jeffery Hummer I have lived in the Lake Hills area near Bellevue College for the past 20 years. 
Born and raised in Renton. Graduated with a Bachelor of Arts in Landscape 
Architecture from the University of Washington, and an Associate of Arts in 
Horticulture from Bellevue Community College. Operated a landscape design 
build business for over 18 years. Served on West Lake Hills CAC as a member 
of Lake Hills Shopping Center Stakeholder's group. 

Mark Ludtka Resident of Bellevue since 1995 in Vuemont South Neighborhood on Cougar 
Mountain.  Licensed Architect in the State of Washington, Partner with Callison 
LLC for 25 years with focus on Office, Retail and Mixed Use project types within 
our firm’s global practice.  Have served on two prior City of Bellevue CAC 
committees; Construction Code Advisory Committee, and Bellevue City Hall 
Advisory Committee.  Graduate of Washington State University with Bachelor of 
Architecture. Member of NAIOP, Quality Growth Alliance Recognition 
Committee, and WSU College of Architecture and Construction Management 
Advisory Board. 

Tom Perea Current – My wife and I are owners of the Children’s Studio, a pre-school for 2-5 
year olds with two campuses in the Eastgate planning area.  I am also a 
Financial Planner.  Previously I was the Senior VP of sales for an advertising 
agency and I taught in the Issaquah school district for three years. I served on 
the King County Citizens Advisory Committee in 1991 for the Land 
Use/Rezoning on the Pine Lake Plateau. 

Rob Pucher I have been a resident of Bellevue for most of the 45 years of my life.  I have 
lived in Mockingbird Hill with my wife and two children since 2003.  Since that 
time I have enjoyed organizing and hosting neighborhood block parties through 
the City of Bellevue and driving donations for Hopelink. I have also volunteered 
for the past 5 years as a den leader and IT person for our Cub Scout Pack.  I 
graduated Washington State University and have been employed by The Active 
Network in Bothell for the last 4 years as a Senior Software Sales Consultant.  

Rachel Solemsaas Rachel Solemsaas serves as Bellevue College’s Vice President for 
Administrative Services since January 2009.  In this capacity, she serves as the 
Chief Operating and Financial Officer for the largest single-district college in the 
State of Washington.  In serving over 34,000 students annually and in 
overseeing a college budget of $94 million, she is responsible for providing 
vision, leadership, planning, and coordination for the fiscal and administrative 
functions of the College that include facilities maintenance and operations, 
including custodial services, grounds, buildings, capital projects and the college’s 
facility master plan. 

Jim Stanton Jim Stanton has been at Microsoft for 10 years managing transportation, 
government affairs, and development entitlement for Microsoft Real Estate & 
Facilities.  Prior to joining Microsoft Jim worked for the City of Redmond, WA in a 
variety of planning and management capacities, the last five managing the city’s 
Building Department and Permit Center.  Jim has a Bachelor’s degree in Political 
Science from St. John Fisher College in Rochester, NY and a Master’s Degree in 
Urban Planning from the University of Washington. 

David Vranizan Director of Property Services for Benaroya Companies; Member of the Executive 
Board of the Seattle Chapter Building Owners and Managers Association 
(BOMA); member of the Cascadia Region Green Building Council. 



3 | P a g e  
 

Cynthia Welti Cynthia Welti is the Executive Director of the Mountains to Sound Greenway 
Trust, which leads and inspires action to conserve and enhance the lands along 
Interstate 90 from Seattle to Central Washington, ensuring a long-term balance 
between people and nature. 
Prior to joining the Greenway Cynthia had a varied career including running 
leadership workshops, selling real estate in Hawaii, and over 17 years with 
Hewlett-Packard, where she held positions in engineering and in international 
marketing management.  Cynthia is a graduate of Duke University and lives in 
Bellevue with her husband Bruce.  They have 3 children, ages 29, 19, and 18. 

 
  



4 | P a g e  
 

Citizen Advisory Committee Operating Guidelines  
DRAFT 

 
These guidelines describe the roles and meeting procedures to be followed by the Eastgate/I-90 
Citizen Advisory Committee in providing guidance on the Eastgate/I-90 Land Use and 
Transportation Project. 

 
Membership 
The Eastgate/I-90 Citizen Advisory Committee consists of 15 voting members as appointed by the Mayor 
and Deputy Mayor and confirmed by the City Council.  The Eastgate/I-90 Land Use and Transportation 
Project is expected to be completed in 2011 when it is expected that a preferred future land use-
transportation alternative will be developed.  Members of the Citizen Advisory Committee are volunteers 
and shall not be compensated for their efforts. 

 
Charge 
The Eastgate/I-90 Citizen Advisory Committee is directed to provide guidance to city staff in developing 
work products to accomplish the Eastgate/I-90 Land Use and Transportation Project.  Specifically, this 
work will involve developing future development scenarios for the Eastgate/I-90 corridor and ultimately 
selecting a preferred land use and transportation alternative and identifying actions to implement the 
preferred vision.  The project will culminate with a final report summarizing the recommendations of the 
committee.  Once the Citizen Advisory Committee completes its final recommendation, it will disband. 
 
The Citizen Advisory Committee will serve in an advisory capacity to the City Council, the Planning 
Commission, the Transportation Commission, and the Parks Board.  At the conclusion of its work, the 
Citizen Advisory Committee will transmit its recommendation on the preferred future land use and 
transportation vision for the Eastgate/I-90 study area.  The City Council, upon review by City boards and 
commissions, will ultimately approve the final report on the project, which will lead to follow-up work on 
Comprehensive Plan and subarea plan amendments, and potentially changes to the Land Use Code and 
Capital Investment Program Plan. 
 
In undertaking their work, the Citizen Advisory Committee shall be guided by several broad planning 
principles that were approved by the City Council on the project.  (These principles are provided under 
the project information tab in the Citizen Advisory Committee main notebook.) 
 
In conducting its work, the Citizen Advisory Committee should recognize that a wide representation of 
opinions, expertise, and objectives exists within the individual members of the committee.  The Citizen 
Advisory Committee members should respectfully consider each other’s views and right to participate, 
and fully consider all aspects of any issue before drawing conclusions and recommendations.  The 
Citizen Advisory Committee should also participate in broader public outreach efforts on the project and 
solicit input from the general public and other key community stakeholders. 

 
Co-Chairs 
Jay Hamlin and Francois Larrivee have been appointed as co-chairs of the Citizen Advisory Committee.  
The co-chairs will be responsible for running committee meetings, providing facilitation, and ensuring 
adherence to committee procedures.  The co-chairs will encourage active participation by all members.  
The co-chairs will work with city staff to develop draft meeting agendas. 

 
Meetings 
The Citizen Advisory Committee shall meet approximately every 4-6 weeks during the duration of the 
project for 2-to-3 hour meetings.  Meetings of the Citizen Advisory Committee should be, to the extent 
possible, scheduled for a recurring time and place.  All meetings are subject to open public meetings law.  
In addition to regular meetings, field trips and tours may also be scheduled.  The preferred time of day 
and day of the week for meetings will be determined by the committee at their first meeting.  Meeting 
minutes will be kept and distributed to all members.   



5 | P a g e  
 

 
Reaching Agreement 
The Citizen Advisory Committee will present its project recommendations to City Council in 2011.  
Whenever possible, the Citizen Advisory Committee will make decisions by consensus.  Every effort will 
be made to determine the “sense of the committee” and to reach agreement by consensus.  When 
consensus is not possible, a vote shall be taken.  The majority vote of a quorum shall constitute action by 
the committee; a quorum exists when a majority of the committee’s members are present. 
 
For certain decisions, the co-chairs may call for a vote on matters that the Citizen Advisory Committee, 
through consensus, agrees can best be facilitated by a show of hands. 
 

Attendance 
Each Citizen Advisory Committee member shall commit to attend all scheduled meetings.  It shall be the 
responsibility of members to prepare for meetings by reviewing materials distributed in advance. Agenda 
materials will be distributed at least one week prior to each meeting. Decisions will be made by those 
present at the meeting.  Substitutes for Citizen Advisory Committee members are not permitted, other 
than the designated alternates from the City Planning Commission, Transportation Commission, and 
Parks Board.  If a Citizen Advisory Committee member misses three consecutive meetings, that member 
will be dismissed.   
 

Non-Committee Participation 
Citizen Advisory Committee meetings will be advertised on the project website, City events calendar, and 
other venues, and will be open to attendance by the general public.  At the start of the Citizen Advisory 
Committee’s second meeting, and at all subsequent meetings, a limited amount of time will be available 
for oral public comments.  Written comments may be addressed to the co-chairs and/or staff. 

 
Task Groups 
When advised by city staff or a determination is made by the co-chairs, the chairs may appoint Citizen 
Advisory Committee task groups.  Task groups may vary in size and will have a defined content scope 
and tenure.  Citizen Advisory Committee members may serve on more than one task group.  Task groups 
will act in an information-gathering and advisory capacity to the overall committee; they will not be 
authorized to make recommendations on behalf of the entire committee. 
 

Communication with City Council, Boards and Commissions 
The Citizen Advisory Committee co-chairs and city staff may provide periodic updates on the progress of 
the project to the City Council.  Committee representatives from city boards and commissions shall 
provide regular updates to their colleagues.  
 

Committee Support 
City staff shall manage the overall planning effort and will, with the assistance of consultants, provide 
technical and clerical support to the Citizen Advisory Committee. 
  



6 | P a g e  
 

Protocols for City of Bellevue  
Boards, Commissions, Committees and Task Forces 

 
 
The construction of the state’s Open Public Meetings and Public Records Acts relies on the wording of a 
1972 citizen initiative, which provides: 
 

The people of this state do not yield their sovereignty to the agencies which serve them.  The 
people, in delegating authority, do not give their public servants the right to decide what is good 
for the people to know and what is not good for them to know.  The people insist on remaining 
informed so that they may retain control over the instruments they have created.  

 
The following material summarizes the responsibilities of City Council-appointed Boards, Commissions, 
Committees and Task Forces in compliance with these laws and in the furtherance of open government. 
   
Meetings 
 
 The Open Public Meetings Act applies to all standing, special or advisory boards, commissions, 

committees or subcommittees appointed by the City Council. 
 
 All meetings must be open to the public, with the exception that Executive Session may be held on 

topics authorized by State law. 
 
 Staff will assure that proper noticing is provided for regular or special meetings of the Board, 

Commission, Task Force, or Committee, as well as posting agendas, publishing meeting packet 
materials, and preparing minutes. 

 
 A meeting takes place when a quorum (a majority of the total number of Board, Commission, 

Committee or Task Force members) is present and information concerning City business is received, 
discussed, and/or acted upon.   

 
 No legal action may be taken by the Board, Commission, Committee or Task Force except in a public 

meeting.  At a Special Meeting, action can be taken only on those items appearing on the posted 
agenda.  “Action” is defined as the transaction of the official business …but not limited to receipt of 
public testimony, deliberations, discussions, considerations, reviews, evaluations, and final actions. 

 
 To avoid possible violations of the Open Public Meetings Act, staff advise that Board, 

Commission, Committee or Task Force members avoid any back-and-forth exchange of 
information, viewpoints, positions or other dialogue via email or conference call among a 
quorum of their membership about the business of their organization.    Additionally, email 
exchanges about City business among less than a quorum which are then relayed by a 
participant to other members, who together would constitute a quorum, should also be 
avoided. 

 
 
Public Records 
 
 The term “public records” applies to any paper, correspondence, form, bound volume, film, magnetic 

record, drawing, photograph, audio or video recording, videostream, email or other document 
(regardless of media) that has been created or received by any state or local government agency 
(including Boards, Commissions, etc.) during the course of public business. 

 
 To assess a public record’s status, it is necessary to determine the message content.  The following 

guidelines apply to records in general as well as to email correspondence. 
 



7 | P a g e  
 

 Examples of emails or documents which usually are public records: 
 Policy and procedure directives 
 Correspondence and/or memoranda related to public business 
 Documents related to legal or audit issues 
 Messages that document City actions, decisions, operations or responsibilities 
 Messages that initiate, authorize, or complete a business transaction 
 Final reports or recommendations 
 Other messages sent or received that relate to the transaction of City business. 

 

 Examples of emails or documents which usually are NOT public records: 
 Individual Board/Commission member’s copies of meeting notices or reminders  
 Personal messages not related to official business 
 Announcements or bulletins 
 Informal notes 
 Telephone messages that do not contain information that may constitute a public 

record 
 Information downloaded from network sources such as web sites or bulletin 

boards 
 Copies of published materials 
 Duplicate copies 
 Requests for information (but not public disclosure requests) 
 Transmittal memos. 

 
 Members of Boards, Commission, Committees and Task Forces may be required to produce 

their personal notes taken at their meetings that relate to the activities and deliberations of the 
organization in response to a request for inspection and copying of public records (a/k/a a 
public disclosure request).  To the extent those notes contain information that is purely 
personal or material that is exempt under the Public Disclosure Act, they may not need to be 
provided to the requestor. 

 
 Members of Boards, Commissions, Committees or Task Forces may also be required to 

produce emails or documents that relate to the activities or operations of the organization in 
response to a public disclosure request.  Staff recommends that members of Boards, 
Commissions, Committees or Task Forces establish a separate, clearly named  file within their 
personal email account and/or on the hard drive of their personal computer to which they file 
all materials relating to the organization. 

 

 The City must provide the fullest assistance in response to public disclosure requests.   The 
City’s Public Records Officer and a representative of the City Attorney’s Office will review any 
documents which may be exempt from disclosure and will provide the necessary explanations 
of the exemptions to the requestor if access to particular records is denied.   Courts may 
award monetary penalties should the City not respond promptly or fully. 

 
 Public records are the property of the City and must be managed (preserved, stored, 

transferred, destroyed, etc.) according to the provisions of RCW 40.14.   Staff suggests that 
Board, Commission, Committee and/or Task Force members copy electronic and paper 
records not already in possession of the City back to City staff periodically (in the case of 
ongoing Boards and Commissions) or upon completion of their charge (for shorter duration 
Committees or Task Forces).  

 
 
City Clerk’s Office 
Last revised 07/18/07 

 



1 | P a g e  
 

 
 

 
Meeting Information 

 
 
Citizen Advisory Committee Engagement 
 
With the launch of the project, staff has begun the needs assessment phase of the project where we are 
analyzing existing conditions and identifying future needs.  The mission of the Citizen Advisory 
Committee is to review this information and make recommendations to the City Council on the project.  
Reflected below is a tentative schedule and sequence of topics for the CAC meetings.  The schedule will 
be continually reviewed and modified as necessary:   
 
 
 
November 2010: Introductions, Mission, Process, Project Overview 
 
December 2010: Project Context 
 
January 2011: Orientation Tour of Eastgate Corridor 
 
January 2011: Land Use Conditions & Opportunities 
 
February 2011: Environmental Conditions and Opportunities 
 
Future Topics: Development of Land Use Scenarios and Urban Design Concepts 
(Spring) 
 Transportation Conditions & Opportunities 
 
 Development of Transportation Strategies and Boulevard Design Concepts 
 
Future Topics: Urban Design & Sustainability 
(Summer) 
 Public Workshops 
 
 Preliminary Preferred Land Use Scenario & Transportation Solutions 
 
Future Topics: Develop Preferred Land Use & Transportation Alternative; Design Guidelines Direction 
(Fall) 
 Select & Ratify Preferred Land Use & Transportation Alternative 









































Council Minutes 
 
Summary Minutes of Study Session (January 19, 2010) 
 
 2. Study Session 
  
(a) Initiation of Eastgate/I-90 Land Use and Transportation Update  

 
City Manager Steve Sarkozy made introductory comments regarding the scope and framework for the 
Eastgate/I-90 Land Use and Transportation Plan Update.  
 
Planning Director Dan Stroh explained that the update is a joint planning effort between the Planning and 
Community Development Department and the Transportation Department. He said staff is seeking input 
from the Council regarding the project scope and the principles that will guide this effort. The Eastgate 
area is one of Bellevue's chief employment centers, with approximately 25,000 employees. Mr. Stroh 
reviewed the boundaries of the study area, which is adjacent to potential annexation areas (PAAs).  
 
Mr. Stroh summarized some of the themes that will be addressed in the study including a holistic planning 
approach, the erosion of neighborhood services, transportation system efficiencies demands, the lack of 
connectivity across the corridor, Mountains to Sound Greenway coordination, developing a coherent 
image for the corridor, the evolution and role of Bellevue College, and opportunities for innovation. He 
briefly reviewed current uses in the area including office concentrations, retail nodes, and light industrial 
areas as well as parks and schools.  
 
Kevin O’Neill, Assistant Director of Transportation, briefly reviewed transportation corridors through the 
area including the regional freeway system, the Mountains to Sound Greenway, and transit services. He 
noted that the recently adopted Pedestrian and Bicycle Transportation Plan identified the Mountains to 
Sound Greenway as one of the primary ped-bike corridors. The objectives of the planning update include 
evaluating potential land use changes and multi-modal transportation improvements for the corridor, 
promoting a stronger identity for the area, and supporting Bellevue College’s plans as a new four-year 
institution.  
 
Mr. O’Neill noted 10 proposed guiding principles to direct the work of the Council, the advisory committee, 
Boards and Commissions, and staff. These include enhancing economic vitality and diversity, integrating 
land use and transportation elements, recognizing fiscal constraints in terms of the ability to fund new 
infrastructure, retaining and enhancing neighborhood services, and modeling environmental 
sustainability. The proposed scope of work encompasses an economic and market analysis, review of 
land use alternatives, transportation analysis, greenhouse gas and potential health impact analysis, the 
selection of a preferred alternative, integrated Growth Management Act (GMA) and State Environmental 
Policy Act (SEPA) review, and the identification of financing and implementation strategies. The City will 
work with the public, and potentially an advisory/steering committee, to develop land use alternatives for 
2030 and to analyze transportation impacts and needs associated with these land uses.  
 
Mr. O’Neill reviewed the proposed project timeline and public involvement process. Staff suggests 
appointing a citizen advisory committee early this spring, with the goal of identifying a preliminary 
preferred alternative by the end of the year. The final preferred alternative would be selected in 2011 and 
be followed by staff’s work on related Comprehensive Plan Amendments and Land Use Code 
Amendments. Mr. O’Neill said staff is seeking Council direction regarding the project scope, proposed 
guiding principles, and public involvement plan.  
 
Councilmember Degginger expressed support for the planning effort. However, he feels that the 
Lakemont Boulevard interchange and surrounding area must be part of the primary study area. He noted 
that the study area does not include neighborhoods located south of I-90. Mr. Degginger suggested 
partnering with the City of Issaquah to address transportation needs and planning.  
 



Mr. Stroh explained that staff’s intent was that the primary study area would be the commercially zoned 
areas in which land use changes will be considered. Staff did not want to send the message that 
neighborhoods will be targeted for potential Comprehensive Plan and zoning changes. The secondary 
study area encompasses the broader neighborhoods as well as major transportation systems. Mr. Stroh 
said staff will review the proposed study boundaries.  
 
Councilmember Robertson expressed support for moving forward with the planning effort. Responding to 
Ms. Robertson, Mr. Stroh confirmed that funds have been allocated within the Capital Investment 
Program (CIP) budget to initiate the study.  
 
Councilmember Robertson concurred with Councilmember Degginger’s suggestion to expand the 
planning study area. She recalled that residents of neighborhoods south of I-90 were involved in the 
planning efforts related to Factoria Mall and the Factoria Area Transportation Study Update. Given that 
the Eastgate area involves a major highway, Ms. Robertson questioned the City’s ability to effectively 
influence greenhouse gas levels or impacts. While she supports environmental policies that encourage 
responsible development, she does not want significant City funds to be used to attempt to mitigate 
emission impacts from a state highway facility.  
 
Councilmember Balducci expressed support for the planning effort, noting that it makes good sense to 
address the overall corridor instead of individual subareas. She spoke in favor of extending the primary 
study area along I-90 to include the Lakemont Boulevard interchange. This would retain the focus on land 
use and transportation planning, without raising concerns among residents that neighborhood areas will 
be rezoned. She supports appointing a citizen advisory committee to participate in the planning process, 
to include residents who live in the area and potentially at least one representative from the potential 
annexation area. She suggests assigning a Council liaison to the committee as well.  
 
Regarding the guiding principles, Ms. Balducci stated that retaining and enhancing neighborhood services 
is one of the most important objectives. She suggested that this principle be moved up to #2 or #3 on the 
list of principles. She acknowledged the importance of going into this process with a recognition of the 
fiscal constraints relating to the ability to fund new infrastructure. Regarding the slide on traffic congestion 
points, she suggested adding a congestion point on the map at I-90 and the 156th Avenue exit. Ms. 
Balducci feels that improving Bellevue’s segment of the Mountains to Sound Greenway should be a high 
priority.  
 
Councilmember Chelminiak concurred with the Mountains to Sound Greenway and neighborhood 
services priorities. Responding to Mr. Chelminiak, Mr. Stroh said staff proposes exploring the potential for 
mixed use development in the primary study area. Mr. Chelminiak expressed support for partnerships 
with Bellevue College. He noted it is important to educate residents about the goals of the project and the 
distinctions between primary and secondary study areas. He supports the proposal for a citizen advisory 
committee.  
 
Councilmember Wallace commented that this area has a great potential for future transit oriented 
development. He observed that the guiding principles do not explicitly address the integration between 
commercial/mixed use areas and single family neighborhoods. He suggested that staff review principles 
that have been applied to neighborhoods adjacent to the downtown, including Surrey Downs and 
Ashwood. Mr. Wallace commented on the potential for the future extension of light rail traveling east from 
Bellevue along I-90. He encouraged working with Sound Transit to incorporate any preliminary plans they 
have for Phase 3 light rail development into the City’s Eastgate planning effort, if feasible.  
 
Following up on Councilmember Degginger’s comments, Mr. Wallace suggested that the Lakemont 
Boulevard interchange be studied as a separate project, due to the complicated transportation issues at 
that location. He further suggested coordinating transportation planning with the needs and functions of 
the Factoria area.  
 
Deputy Mayor Lee complimented staff for their work on the Bel-Red Corridor planning effort, which he 
feels will be helpful in the Eastgate planning project as well. He noted that the Eastgate area provides a 



good opportunity for development and redevelopment. However, he expressed concern regarding current 
economic conditions and wondered if the timing is right for this effort. He asked staff to elaborate on the 
rationale for the proposed project schedule.  
 
Councilmember Degginger commented on principle #1 and suggested adding the underlined language: 
Enhance economic vitality and diversity without degrading mobility in other parts of the city, and ensuring 
that it continues to contribute to the diversity of Bellevue’s economic mix.  
Mayor Davidson summarized that it makes good sense to continue discussion about the project scope 
and guiding principles in a future meeting.  
 
City Manager Steve Sarkozy stated that he is hearing Council support to proceed with the planning effort, 
but that more information is needed before endorsing a specific scope of work and guiding principles.  
 
 Summary Minutes of Regular Session  (February 1, 2010) 
 
(b) Management Brief providing information on Initiation of Eastgate/I-90 Land Use and Transportation 

Plan Update  
 

City Manager Steve Sarkozy referred to page 5-5 of the meeting packet for a management brief regarding 
the initiation of the Eastgate and I-90 land use and transportation project. He recalled that the plan was 
reviewed with the Council during the January 19 Study Session, at which time the Council raised some 
questions and requested additional information.  
 
Planning Director Dan Stroh noted that Council’s requested changes to the project map, draft Council 
Principles, public involvement plan, and scope of work are provided in the meeting packet.  
Kevin O’Neill, Assistant Director of Transportation, described the revised project map, which is intended 
to capture the area that could be affected by land use changes, as well as residential areas to the north 
and south of the Eastgate area. A fundamental principle is to minimize mobility impacts to other parts of 
the city, and this is now reflected in Council Principle #1 (Attachment B).  
 
Mr. O’Neill said staff will work with the State as it conducts its I-90 corridor study for the area between I-
405 and North Bend. Upon Council direction to proceed, City staff plans to meet with the City of Issaquah 
and WSDOT as soon as possible to begin the planning process. Mr. O’Neill noted that Council’s interest 
in studying potential Sound Transit Phase 3 alignments has been incorporated into the scope of work for 
this planning update.  
 
Deputy Mayor Lee said he has great concerns about the timing of this project due to budget constraints 
and other projects. He supports the need for updated planning in the Eastgate area, but is concerned 
about creating too many plans for projects that are not funded. Referring to the draft guiding principles, 
Mr. Lee said the top priority for the planning effort should be linking Bellevue’s land uses with economic 
development objectives.  
 
Noting the fourth draft principle, Councilmember Chelminiak observed that transit oriented development is 
a term that is used for a range of different types of development. He questioned what types of residential 
uses might be introduced in this planning effort.  
 
Mr. Stroh noted that the Eastgate Park and Ride is the largest one in King County, with more than 1,600 
parking stalls and effective transit service. He explained that mixed use development, including residential 
units, might be feasible given the high level of transit service and the location of Bellevue College nearby. 
He acknowledged the Council’s repeated comments regarding budget constraints and managing the 
community’s expectations. He said this constraint is now reflected in the preamble to the Council 
Principles for this project.  
 
Councilmember Chelminiak concurred with Mr. Lee’s statement that Bellevue’s land use policies should 
drive the planning effort. In addition, Mr. Chelminiak wants the communities around the area to 
understand the implications of transit oriented development and potentially new residential development.  



 
Councilmember Degginger thanked staff for addressing his concern about the boundaries of the project 
area. However, the Lakemont Boulevard interchange is still not in the primary study area.  
Mr. Stroh stated that he heard somewhat conflicting direction from the Council last time to be clear about 
where land use changes might occur, but also to be clear about what is being studied in terms of 
transportation impacts and transportation relationships. That is why staff did not include the interchange 
in the primary study area.  
 
Mr. O’Neill said the boundary could be extended to the interchange, with a clarifying note that land use 
changes are not anticipated for that area. Mr. Degginger said this suggestion would be his preference. He 
noted significant transportations issues at the interchange, which will be further affected by any land use 
changes in the Eastgate area.  
 
Responding to Mr. Degginger, Mr. Stroh acknowledged previous Council direction to include 
neighborhoods in the planning process. He noted that the Council will be appointing the citizen advisory 
committee.  
 
Mayor Davidson noted Council agreement to extend the primary study area identified on the map to 
include the Lakemont Boulevard interchange.  
 
Mr. Sarkozy noted a gap in the Mountains to Sound Greenway in that area, and suggested the Council 
might want to consider filling in that portion of the route. He agreed that the map should clarify that land 
use changes are not being considered at the interchange.  
 
Councilmember Robertson said it is important to move forward with this planning effort now due to issues 
associated with traffic, neighborhood services, Comprehensive Plan amendments from this area, and the 
potential for annexation of the area. Ms. Robertson lives in the Somerset area. She concurs with Mr. 
Degginger that neighborhoods involved in the planning effort should include those to the south, as well as 
Spiritridge, Robinswood, and others. Ms. Robertson stated that land use changes in the Eastgate area 
will affect the I-90 corridor and broader community.  
 
Councilmember Balducci supports moving forward with the study. She encouraged the study of mixed 
use development as well as neighborhood services and businesses.  
 
Deputy Mayor Lee said he understands the importance of addressing annexation, land uses along I-90, 
and the Lakemont Boulevard interchange. He noted that changes will likely affect the Factoria area as 
well. He encourages citizen involvement to determine priorities and interests related to potential land use 
changes.  
 
Councilmember Wallace expressed support for moving forward. However, he noted his ongoing concern 
that there is a structural deficit in the City’s operating budget.  
 
Mayor Davidson noted a Council consensus to move forward. Mr. Stroh confirmed that staff will ensure 
that the project map is changed to reflect Council direction tonight. Councilmember Degginger asked staff 
to send copies of the revised map to Councilmembers.  



 
 

 

 

 

 

Notebook Maps 
 
 
 
 
The following maps were created in recent months to help display background information and provide 
planning context for this project.  They include: 
 

 Existing Land Use 

 Topography 

 Primary Study Area 

 Existing Zoning 

 Existing Parks, Open Spaces & Recreation 

 Environmental Features 

 Street Connectivity 

 Mountains to Sound Greenway 

 Bicycle Network 

 Sidewalks & Trails 

 Annual Average Weekday Traffic 

 Bus Activity 

 Arterial Classification 

 Surrounding Neighborhoods 
 
Additional maps may be added throughout the course of this project. 



La
ke

P
ha

nt
om

SE
 41

ST

S
E

 2
2

N
D

 S
T

SE

156TH AVE SE

W
A

Y

AV

S
E

 4
3

R
D

 S
T

SE
 4

4T
H

 P
L

AV   SE

SE
 3

8T
H

 S
T

19
TH

SE
 45

TH
 P

L

47
TH

 P
L

SE

SE
 2

7T
H

SE
 4

2N
D

 S
T

SE

14
6T

H

SE

AV   SE

179TH AV SE

(S
E

 2
6T

H
 S

T)

16
2N

D P
L S

E

SE
 N

EW
PO

R
T 

W
Y

S
E 

47
TH

 S
T

14
8T

H

S
E

 4
7

TH
 P

L

AV SE

AV SE

SE
 4

4T
H

 S
T

P
L

S
T

S
E

 2
3

R
D

 P
L

S
E

 2
8

TH
 S

T

163RD

129TH AV SE

140TH

S
E

160TH AVE SE

SE
 2

2N
D

 S
T

DR

AV SE

152ND PL SE

KEY

S
E

 2
7

TH
 S

T

ST

SE

SKAGIT KEY

KAMBER RD (140TH PL SE)

SE

17
7T

H A
V 

SE

ST

SE

47
TH

SE 40TH PL

140TH AV SE

SE

AV SE

43
RD

P
L

14
7T

H A
V S

E

146TH PL SE

156TH AV SE

SE
 N

EW
PO

R
T 

W
AY

S
E

SE 47TH  W
AY

SE
 4

3R
D

 P
L

SE
 N

EW
PO

R
T 

W
Y

SE
 4

7T
H

 P
L

CT

142ND

182ND

PL

SE

SE
 3

6T
H

 S
T

171ST AVE SE

S
E

 2
5

TH
 P

L

ALLEN RD.

SE
 4

3R
D

 S
T

SE

LAKE WASHINGTON BLVD SE

LK WASH BLVD SE

25
TH

150TH AVE SE

SE
 4

9T
H

 S
T

PL SE

SE
 4

5T
H

S
E

 4
1

S
T 

S
T

G
LA

C
IE

R
 K

E
Y

135TH PL

130TH AV SE

127TH AV SE

SE

14
7T

H A
V S

E

120TH PL SE

44
TH

S
E

 2
9

TH
 S

T

163RD

AV SE

S
T

PL SE

S
E

 2
0

TH

H
E

N
RY

 B
O

C
K 

R
D

S
E

 4
2

N
D

 P
L

PL

S
E

 3
7

TH
 S

T

S
E

 4
7

TH
 P

L

S
T

SE

SOMERSET DR SE

SE
 4

5T
H

 P
L

154TH PL

AV SE

S
T

SE

SE

167TH AV SE

138TH PL SE

S
E

 2
1

S
T 

S
T

AV SE

157TH

PL

172ND

SE ALLE
N

PL
 S

E

SE
 4

4T
H

 C
T

CT SE

14
2N

D

SE
 2

3R
D

 S
T

SE

26
TH

(132ND AV SE)

S
E

S
E

 4
7

TH
 P

L

PL

COAL CREEK PKWY SE

AV SE

133RD  AV SE

SE 21
ST P

L

152ND AVE SE

AV

CT SE

147T

PL

S
T

S
E

 4
4

TH
 S

T

ST
W

AY

CT

118TH AVE SE

SOMERSET

S
E

 2
1

S
T 

S
T

116TH AV SE

PL

121ST

S
T

AV   SE

136TH PL SE

47TH
153RD AV SE

SE

AV SE

142ND PL SE

SUCIA KEY

129TH

SE NEWPORT WAY

SE
 A

LL
EN

 R
D

142 PL SE

134TH PL SE

SE

DECATUR

SE
 43

RD
 S

T

SE
 47

TH
 S

T

SE
 4

2N
D

 P
L

46
TH

PL

SE
 4

5T
H

SE
 3

9T
H

 P
L

162ND AV SE

SE

S

E
 2

6
TH

 PL

SE
 4

4T
H

 C
T

180TH AVE SE

S
E

 4
5

TH
 P

L

AV

S
E

 2
9

TH

S
E

 2
0

TH
 S

T

140TH AV SE

SE
 4

2N
D

S
E

 1
9

TH
 S

T

16
4 W

AY S
E

SE
 3

8T
H

 P
L

SE
 4

3R
D

W
A

Y

185TH PL SE

153RD AVE SE

S
E

 4
2

N
D

 S
T

170TH PL SE

45
TH

SE
 4

7T
H

PL SE

168TH AV SE

AV SE

162ND  PL SE

16
2N

D

140TH

146TH

130TH AVE SE

D
E

 K
E

Y

S
T

SE
 4

4T
H

 S
T

AV SE

SE

AV SE

161ST

165TH AVE SE

SE
 4

4T
H

 S
T

S
E

 4
1

S
T 

S
T

PL SE

134TH

SE

133RD

135TH AV SE

133RD AV SE

SE
 2

9T
H

139TH AV SE

156TH PL SE

ST

PL

S
E

 3
0

TH
 S

T

SE

S
T

PL SE

ST

180TH AV

AV SE

SOMERSET

P
L

16
3R

D

BL
VD

    
 S

E

S
E

 4
2

N
D

 P
L

LOPEZ

S
E

 2
7

TH
 S

T

154TH AVE SE

17
2N

D 
CT

SE
 4

1S
T 

ST

147TH PL SE

ST

ST

S
E

 4
4

TH
 P

L

158TH

46
TH

 S
T

SOMERSET    B
LVD   SE

AV SE

17
3R

D

SE
 4

2N
D

 S
T

135TH AV SE

S
E

 3
1

S
T 

S
T

17
5T

H
 P

L 
SE

S
E

 4
2

N
D

 S
T

SE 41
ST

   129TH PL SE

149TH PL SE
148TH AV SE

SE

SE
 4

8T
H

 D
R

SE
 4

4T
H

 S
T

COAL          CREEK          PKWY          SE

SE
 4

3R
D

 S
T

150TH

187TH

AV

155TH AVE SE

153RD AV SE

164TH AV SE

SE
 2

2N
D

 S
T

134TH AV SE

130th PL SE

161ST

SOMERSET DR SE

KEY
S

E
 2

2
N

D
 S

T

147TH

S
E

 4
4

TH

S
E

 3
1

S
T 

S
T

SE
 4

5T
H

121ST

W
ES

T 
LA

KE

138TH

144TH

SE
 22

ND
 S

T

169TH PL SE

139TH A V SE

161ST AV SE

KEY

SE
 4

7T
H

 S
T

129TH PL SE

S
E

 4
3

R
D

 S
T

40
TH

 P
L

163RD  PL SE

S
E

PL SE

181ST

151ST PL SE

SE
 4

2N
D

 S
T

S
E

 1
9T

H
 P

L

S
T

SE
   

A
LL

EN
   

R
D

PL

AV SE

S
E

 2
3

R
D

 S
T

170TH

PL SE

S
E

 2
5

TH
 S

T

148TH AVE SE

116TH PL SE

147TH

COAL CREEK PKWY SE

178TH

RICHARDS RD

CT

SE
 45

TH
 P

L

PL S
E

S
E

 3
2

N
D

 S
T

PL SE

CT

142ND PL SE

AV   SE

NE
W

PO
R

T

PL SE

122ND
SE

AV SE

163RD

AV  SE

PL

BL
VD

153RD AV SE

KEY

SE

W
AY

SO
M

E
RS

E
T

C
T

174TH PL SE

145TH AV SE

S
E

 4
5

TH
 S

T

156TH PL SE

SE 44TH

SE

143RD

SE
 4

2N
D

 S
T

39
TH

C
T

165TH CT SE

SE
 E

A
ST

G
AT

E 
W

AY

163RD

SE
 4

3R
D

 P
L

SE

S
E

 4
6

TH
 W

A
Y

S
E 

47
TH

 P
L

PL

SE

RICHARDS ROAD

(132ND AVE SE)

169TH AVE SE

SE
43

RD

PL

S
E

 4
7

TH

SE
 4

5T
H

 P
L

KE
Y

42
ND

S
E

145TH AV SE

148TH

152ND LN SE

CT SE

SE

182ND AV SE

SE
 1

9T
H

123RD AVE SE

121ST AV SE

145TH

166TH AVE

SE
 4

5T
H

 S
T

SE

159TH AV

159TH AV SE

42
N

D

140TH AV SE

45
TH

S
E

S
E

 2
4

TH
 S

T

PL

SE
 3

9T
H

 S
T

15
1S

T

SE

149TH

139TH PL SE

PH
IL

LI
PS

 H
IL

L 
R

D
  (

SE
 3

5T
H 

PL
)

S
E

 1
9

TH
 S

T

46
TH

ST

S
E

 3
9

TH
 S

T

PL

157TH

HIGHLAND DRIVE SE

KAMBER RD (1
39TH PL SE)

SE

SE
 4

3R
D

 S
T

PL SE

WEST LAKE SAMMAMISH PKWY

S
E

 2
5

TH
 S

T

174TH AV SE

168TH AV SE

S
E

 4
7T

H
 S

T

PL   SE

S
E

 3
3

R
D

 P
L

43
R

D

ST

ST

128TH AV SE

SE
 4

5T
H

 S
T

PL S
E

SE
 4

0T
H

S
E

 2
3

R
D

 S
T

20
TH

 S
T

C
TS
E

SE
 4

2N
D

 S
T

140TH AV SE

158TH

49
TH

128TH AV SE

136TH AV SE

PL SE

S
E

 4
4

TH

141ST CT SE

16
4T

H P
L S

E

AV

PL

151ST

120TH AV SE

165TH PL SE

SE

137TH AV SE

S
E

 4
8

TH
 D

R

LAKE HEIGHTS

S
E

 2
8

TH
 P

L

SE

AV

AV SE

SE

PL

ST

146TH A

PL SE

117TH AV SE

AV

124TH AV SE

S
E

 4
8

TH
 D

R

161ST AV SE

SE
 3

7T
H

 S
T

S
E

 4
7

TH
 P

L

166TH AV SE

PL SE

SE
 4

7T
H

 P
L

SE

SE
 4

8T
H

44
TH

42
N

D

138TH AV SE

SE
 4

3R
D

 P
L

S
E

 3
5

TH
 S

T

13
9T

H

S
E

S
E

 N
E

W
P

O
R

T 
W

A
Y

S
E

 3
5

TH
 S

T

SE
 39

TH
 S

T

SE 20
TH

 P
L

S
E

 2
8

TH
 S

T

PL

128TH AV SE

SE

CI
RC

LE

SE

SE
 E

A
ST

G
AT

E

165TH PL SE

171ST AVE SE

S
E

 2
8

TH

170TH

162ND

29
TH

45
TH

  S
T

AV   SE

SE

127TH

RICHARDS ROAD

(132ND AVE SE)

(132ND AVE SE)

S
E 

45
TH

 P
L

148TH AV SE

S
E

 2
7

TH
 S

T

152ND

CT

SE

45
TH

 C
T

SE
 A

LL
EN

 R
D

S
E

121ST

FACTORIA BLVD

172ND AV SE

156TH AV SE

AV    SE

158TH AV SE

167TH AV SE

S
E

 3
2

N
D

 S
T

(118TH AV SE)

165TH AV SE

SE

PK
W

Y

S
E

 4
3

RD
 C

T

153RD AV SE

SE
 44

TH
 P

L

SE
 3

8T
H

 S
T

AV SE

146TH AV SE

CT

177TH AVE SE

S
E 

46
TH

 S
T

PL SE

152ND

140TH

SE
 4

7T
H

 P
L

155TH

AV SE

K
E

Y

165TH AV SE

142ND AV SE

SE
 4

9 
PL

S
E

 2
1

S
T 

P
L

47
TH

 P
L

45
TH

SE
 2

6T
H

 S
T

SE

P
L 

S
E

LU
M

M
I

S
E

 4
6

TH

122ND AV SE

SE
 3

7T
H

SE
 4

7T
H

 S
T

SE
 4

1S
T 

ST
139TH AV SE

S
E

 2
7

TH
 S

T

134TH AVE SE

LA
N

D
E

R
H

O
LM

SE
 A

LL
EN

 R
D

CASCADE

130TH AV SE130TH AV SE

145TH AV SE

SKAGIT KEY

46
TH

  S
T

S
E

 4
2

N
D

AV SE

128TH AV SE

SE
 4

5T
H

 S
T

173RD AV

146TH AV SE

131ST

133RD AV SE

LN

182ND PL SE

S
E

 4
7

TH

48
TH

SE 49TH PL

141ST PL

SE N
EW

PORT W
Y

PL

CT

S
E

 4
3

R
D

 P
L

SE

45
TH

S
E

18
7T

H  A
V

CT
 S

E

SE

186TH PL

125TH AV SE

174TH

SE

PL

S
E

 4
9

TH
 S

T

AV SE

145TH PL SE

SE

AV SE

ST

SE

166TH

155TH PL SE

AV SE

ST

SOMERSET PL

136TH PL SE

125TH AV SE

155TH

S
E

 4
6

TH
 S

T

132ND AV SE

PL S
E

149TH

ST

SE

14
6T

H
 P

L 
S

E

S
E

 4
4

TH
 W

A
Y

K
A

M
B

E
R

 R
D

AV SE

119TH AV SE

S
E

 4
8

TH
 P

L

SE
 2

6T
H

 S
T

124TH AV SE

SE
 47

TH
 C

T

166TH AV SE

134TH PL SE

151ST AV SE

AV SE

134TH AV SE

AV  SE

145TH

SE
 4

5T
H

 C
T

168TH AV SE

S
E

  4
6T

H

S
E

 4
1

S
T 

S
T

S
E

   
S

E
 3

8T
H

 P
L

PL SE

135TH PL SE

ST

S
E

 2
0

TH
 S

T

S
E

 4
8

TH
 S

T

135TH

S
E

 2
0

TH

SE

W      
LAKE      

SAMMAMISH     

SE

129TH AV SE

127TH

SE
 46

TH

163RD

147TH PL SE

SE 44
TH

S
E

 4
7

TH
 P

L

TU
LA

LI
P 

K
EY

38
TH

163RD AV SE

171ST AVE SE

S
E 

23
R

D
 P

L

169TH PL SE

S
E

 4
5

TH
 P

L

PL SE

PL

(118TH AV SE)

S
E

 3
7

TH
 S

T

S
E 

46
TH

S
E

  4
6T

H

130th PL SE

135TH AV SE

132ND AV SE

122ND

118TH AV SE

118TH

SE
 23

RD
 S

T

S
E

 3
8

TH
 S

T

136TH

SE

SE
 4

5T
H

 S
T

S
T

ST

ST

AV SE

P
L

SE

46
TH

26
TH

AV

149TH AV SE

P
L

SE

SE

SE
 29

TH

CT

171ST AV SE

138TH PL SE

SE
 4

0T
H

 S
T

152ND AV SE

142ND AV SE

PL

S
E

 3
0

TH
 S

T

17
2N

D P
L 

SE

136TH

SE
 4

2N
D

 S
T

SE 38
TH

S
T

167TH AV SE

121ST

S
E

 4
4

TH
 P

L

CH
EL

AN
 K

EY

SE

123RD AV SE

47
T

H
 P

L

ST

SE

SE 33
RD S

T

S
E

 4
9

TH
 P

L

ST

S
E

 2
9

 P
L

SE
 N

EW
PO

RT 
W

AY

137TH PL SE

162ND AV SE

KEY

S
E

 3
3

R
D

 C
IR

C

SE

EA
ST

G
AT

E

SE

SE
 4

6T
H

 S
T

13
6T

H
 P

L 
SE

S
E

 2
6

TH
 S

T

136TH AV SE

134TH PL

167TH

W
    

  L

AKE    
   S

AMM
AM

I S
H

    
  P

K
W

Y
   

   
S

E

AV    SE

S
E

 3
1

S
T 

S
T

S
E

SE
 2

3R
D

 P
L

SE

146TH

SE
 N

EW
PO

RT 
W

AY

SE
 45

TH
 P

L

150TH

SE
 A

LL
EN

 R
D

139TH AV SE

150TH

PL S
E

145TH AV SE

PL
 S

E

SA
MM

AM
IS

H

146TH

158TH

156TH

145TH AV SE

157TH

S
E

 4
8

TH
 S

T

C
T

133RD AV SE

TATOOSH

S
E

 4
2

N
D

 C
T

FACTORIA BLVD SE

173RD

S
E

 4
2

N
D

 P
L

P
L

SE 23RD LN

140TH WY

(S

E 3
2N

D
 S

T
)

AV

170TH

142ND

AV SE

ST

126TH

158TH AV SE

S
E

 2
6

TH
 P

L

142ND

SE

131ST PL

149TH

CT

ST

SE

141ST

AV

176TH

PL

143RD AV SE

AV SE

AV    SE

123RD AV SE

46
TH

SE
 4

5T
H

W
AY

SE

49
TH

SE 22ND PL

SE

S
E

 2
4

TH
 S

T

171
ST

 A
V

E 
S

E

21
S

T

169TH AVE SE

SE
 23

RD
 S

T

CT

145TH AV SE

15
9T

H A
V 

SE

144TH AV SE

15
7T

H
 A

V 
SE

S
E

 4
2

N
D

 S
T

S
E

 2
3

R
D

 S
T

SE
 4

7T
H

SE
 4

4T
H

SOMERSET

119TH AV SE

S
E 

38
TH

 S
T

AV SE

139TH

SE 46
TH

 S
T

129TH PL SE

S
E

  2
0T

H

PL

S
E

 4
9

TH
 S

T

S
E

 4
8

TH
 S

T

122ND AV SE

S
E

 4
1

S
T 

P
L

EA
S

TG
AT

E

138TH

SE
 47

TH
 S

T

AV SE

S
E

 2
1

S
T 

S
T

S
E

 4
0

TH
 S

T

130TH PL SE

PL SE

AV   SE

S
E

CT

PL

170TH AV SE

153RD

141ST AV SE

S
E

 4
0

TH
 P

L

14
6T

H

155TH

PL

151ST AVE SE

S
E

 4
4

TH
 P

L

S
E

 2
8

TH
 S

T

SE
 4

5T
H

 P
L

181ST

167TH

123RD AV SE

SE 46
TH

 P
L

SE
 4

7T
H

 P
L

42
ND

 P
L

AV SE

PL

126TH AV SE

FACTORIA BLVD

169TH

SE
 4

3R
D

 S
T

S
E

 2
7

TH
 S

T

SE

32
N

D
 S

T

187TH

SE
 4

7T
H

 S
T

34
TH

PL

PL. SE

S
E

 1
9

TH
 S

T

154TH AV SE

140TH AV SE

SE
 21

ST
 P

L

133RD AV SE

136TH PL SE

12
3R

D P
L 

SE

SE

RD

116TH AV SE

SOMERSET BLVD SE

47
TH

 P
L

AV SE

CT SE

SE

172ND AV SE

S
E

 4
2

N
D

 S
T

150TH

SE
 4

5T
H

 P
L

138TH AV SE

119TH AV SE

160TH CT SE

SOMERSET

SE
 2

0T
H

124TH AV SE

S
E

 4
8

TH
 D

R

AV SE

AV SE

RICHARDS RD

155TH AV SE

PL

140TH AV SE

177TH

SE
 4

5T
H

 P
L

16
3R

D P
L

C
T

176TH

135TH

SE
 45

TH
 P

L

S
E

 2
5

TH
 S

T

16
4 

W
AY

 S
E

AV    SE

S
E

 4
1

S
T

123RD PL SE

KEY

25
TH

47
TH

 P
L

SE

SE
 4

6T
H

 W
AY

SE
 4

5T
H

 S
T

S
E

171ST AV SE

P
L

139TH AV

139TH AV SE

14
4T

H
 P

L 
S

E

LAKE HEIGHTS

159TH AV SE

SE
 4

6T
H

 S
T

SE

P
L

46
TH

SE
 4

2N
D

 P
L

SE
 2

0T
H

 P
L SE

SE
 4

3R
D

 P
L

SE 47TH PL

SE
 4

6T
H

 S
T

SE
 4

5T
H

 P
L

S
E

 1
8

TH
 P

L

S
E 

48
T

H
 P

L

PL SE

SE
 4

6T
H

 S
T

127TH AVE SE

AV SE

172ND

SE

SE
 2

2N
D

152ND PL SE

43
RD

38
TH

AV SE

FACTORIA BLVD

147TH

187TH

SE

SE
 46

TH
 P

L

144TH AV SE

123RD AV SE

SE 47TH PL

155TH

151ST

S
E

 3
0

TH
 S

T

41
ST

PL

134TH PL SE

122ND AV SE

PL SE

146TH PL SE

SE
 1

8T
H

151ST PL SE

47
TH

S
E

 4
7

TH
 S

T

170TH

26TH

S
E

 2
1

S
T 

P
L

PL SE

160TH

S
E

 4
8T

H
 C

T

SE 46
TH

 P
L

28
TH

HI
G

H
LA

ND
 D

R
IV

E 
SE

S
T

138TH AV SE

S
E

 3
7

TH

AV SE

40
TH

147TH

142 PL SE

S
E

 4
2

N
D

 S
T

ST

SE

151ST AV SE

NE
W

PO
R

T

SE
 4

7T
H

 S
T

166TH PL SE

S
E

SE

46TH

16
6T

H A
V S

E

SE

SE
 4

5T
H

 C
T

S
E

 2
4

TH
 S

T

154TH

AV SE

AV SE

164TH AV SE

158TH AV SE

14
2N

D

155TH

S
E

 2
3

R
D

 P
L

168TH AV

139TH PL SE

131ST

FACTORIA BLVD

S
E

 2
3

R
D

 S
T

SE
 4

0T
H

 P
L

186TH AV SE

SE
 2

2N
D

ORCAS

S
T

S
E

161ST

31
ST

AV SE

PL SE

S
E

 2
5

TH
 S

T

PL

PL

AV SE

VASHON

PL

AV SE

SE

47
TH

168TH

153RD AV SE

S
E 

45
TH

 P
L

W
A

Y

137TH AV SE

AV SE

S
E

 2
3

R
D

 S
T

AV SE

S
E

174TH

S
E

 2
1

S
T

(S
E

 3
4T

H
 S

T)

P
H

IL
LI

P
S

 H
IL

L 
R

D

42
N

D

AV

151ST AV SE

165TH

AV

SE 46
TH

 P
L

ST

14
5T

H P
L 

SE

154TH

LA
N

D
ERHOLM    CIRCLE

KEY

SE
 N

EW
PO

RT 
W

AY

AV SE

118TH

AV   SE

154TH PL SE

S
E

 2
0

TH
 P

L

PL

P
L

SE
 4

4T
H

 S
T

PL

SE
 40

TH

S
E

 4
0

TH
 S

T

SE

SE

SE

SE

162ND

SE
 4

1
S

T

PL SE

S
E

 1
8

TH
 S

T

CT

S
E

 4
2

N
D

 P
L

S
E

 4
1

S
T 

S
T

SE
 4

0T
H

S
E

 2
5

TH
 S

T

164TH PL SE

45
TH

0
1,

00
0

2,
00

0
3,

00
0

4,
00

0
50

0
Fe

et
[

La
nd

 
U

se
C

om
m

er
ci

al

O
ffi

ce

In
st

itu
tio

na
l/G

ov
er

nm
en

t

H
ot

el
/M

ot
el

In
du

st
ria

l

M
ul

ti-
Fa

m
ily

Si
ng

le
 F

am
ily

M
ix

ed
 U

se

O
pe

n 
U

se

Pa
rk

R
ec

re
at

io
n

Pa
rk

in
g

Va
ca

nt

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s

Po
te

nti
al

 A
nn

ex
ati

on
 A

re
a

(n
o 

da
ta

)

Po
te

nti
al

 A
nn

ex
ati

on
 A

re
a

(n
o 

da
ta

)

SE
 E

as
tg

at
e 

W
ay

S
E

 3
2n

d 
S

t.

S
E

 3
0t

h 
S

t.

S
E

 2
6t

h 
S

t.

Richards Road

S
E 

28
th

 S
t.

Factoria Blvd.

139th Ave. SE

142nd Place SE

158th Ave
 SE

160th Ave
. S

E

161st A
ve SE

Ex
is

tin
g 

La
nd

 U
se

40
5

90

To
po

gr
ap

hy

La
nd

 u
se

s 
ar

e 
ge

ne
ra

lly
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 z
on

in
g.

•	
M
an
y	
ne

w
er
	o
ffi
ce
	b
ui
ld
in
gs
	(1
98

0-
pr
es
en

t)
•	

O
ld
er
	in
du

st
ria

l	a
re
a	
(R
ic
ha
rd
s	
Va

lle
y)

•	
Re

ta
il	
no

de
s	
(E
as
tg
at
e	
Pl
az
a,
	L
oe

hm
an

’s	
Pl
az
a,
	S
un

se
t	V

ill
ag
e)

•	
Se
ve
ra
l	g
ov
er
nm

en
ta
l/
in
sti
tu
tio

na
l	u
se
s

o	
Be

lle
vu
e	
Co

lle
ge

o	
LD

S	
te
m
pl
e

o	
Pa
rk
-N
-R
id
e

o	
Tr
an
sf
er
	S
ta
tio

n
o	

H
um

an
e	
So

ci
et
y

o	
Pu

ge
t	S

ou
nd

	E
ne

rg
y

•	
Cl
os
e	
to
	F
ac
to
ria

	M
al
l

•	
Ad

ja
ce
nt
	to

	s
in
gl
e-
fa
m
ily
	n
ei
gh
bo

rh
oo

ds



!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

! ! !

!
!

!

! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

! ! ! !

!

! ! ! !

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

! ! !

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

! ! !

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!!!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

! !

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

! ! ! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
! !

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!
!

!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! !

!
!

! ! !

!
!

!

! ! ! !

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!
!

!!!!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!
!

La
ke

SE
 4

1S
T

SE
 2

2N
D

 S
T

PL
 S

E

SE

156TH AVE SE

W
AY

AV

SE
 4

3R
D

 S
T

SE
 4

4T
H

 P
L

AV   SE

SE
 3

8T
H

 S
T

49
TH

SE
 4

5T
H P

L

47
TH

 P
L

SE

SE
 2

7T
H

SE
 4

2N
D 

ST

SE

14
6T

H

SE

AV   SE

179TH AV SE

(S
E 

26
TH

 S
T)

16
2N

D PL S
E

SE
 N

EW
PO

RT
 W

Y

SE
 4

7T
H

 S
T

14
8T

H

SE
 4

7T
H

 P
L

AV SE

AV SE

SE
 4

4T
H

 S
T

PL

ST

SE
 2

3R
D

 P
L

SE
 2

8T
H

 S
T

163RD

129TH AV SE

SE

140TH

SE

160TH AVE SE

SE
 2

2N
D

 S
T

DR

AV SE

152ND PL SE

SE
 5

1S
T 

ST

KEY

142ND

SE
 5

0T
H

SE
 2

7T
H

 S
T

ST

SE

SKAGIT KEY

KAMBER RD (14

SE

17
7T

H 
AV

 S
E

ST

SE

47
TH

SE 40TH PL

140TH AV SE

16
5T

H P
L S

E

SE
 5

0T
H 

PL

SE 50
TH

 P
L

SE

158TH PL SE

AV SE

43
RD

PL

126TH AV SE

14
7T

H A
V 

SE

146TH PL SE

15

SE
 N

E
W

PO
R

T 
W

A
Y

SE

SE 47TH W
AY

SE
 4

3R
D

 P
L

SE
 5

1S
T 

ST

SE
 N

EW
PO

RT
 W

Y
SE

 4
7T

H
 P

L

ST

CT

142ND

182ND

PL

SE

SE
 3

6T
H

 S
T

171ST AVE SE

SE
 2

5T
H

 P
L

ALLEN RD.

SE
 4

3R
D

 S
T

SE

LAKE WASHINGTON BLVD SE

LK WASH BLVD SE

25
TH

150TH AVE 

SE
 4

9T
H

 S
T

PL SE

SE
 4

5T
H

SE
 4

1S
T 

ST

C
IE

R
 K

E
Y

135TH PL

130TH AV SE

159TH PL SE

SE

14
7T

H A
V 

SE
189TH AV SE

120TH PL SE

44
TH

SE
 2

9T
H

 S
T

163RD

AV SE

ST

PL SE

SE
 2

0T
H

H
EN

R
Y 

B
O

C
K 

R
D

SE
 4

2N
D

 P
L

PL

SE
 3

7T
H

 S
T

SE
 4

7T
H

 P
L

ST

SE

SOMERSET DR SE

SE
 4

5T
H

 P
L

154TH PL

AV SE

ST

SE

SE

167TH AV SE

138TH PL SE

SE
 2

1S
T 

ST

AV SE

157TH

PL

172ND

SE A
LL

EN

PL
 S

E

SE
 4

4T
H

 C
T

CT SE

14
2N

D

SE
 2

3R
D 

ST

SE

26
TH

(132ND AV SE)

SE

SE
 4

7T
H

 P
L

PL

COAL CREEK PKWY SE

AV SE

133RD  AV SE

SE 21
ST PL

AV

CT SE

PL

ST

SE
 4

4T
H

 S
T

ST
W

AY

CT

118TH AVE SE

145TH PL SE

SOMERSET

SE
 2

1S
T 

ST

PL

ST

AV   SE

136TH PL SE

190TH

47TH

153RD AV SE

SE

AV SE

142ND PL SE

SUCIA KEY

SE
 4

9T
H 

ST

129TH

SE NEWPORT WAY

SE
 A

LL
EN

 R
D

142 PL SE

SOMERSET DR SE

134TH PL SE

SE

SE
 4

3R
D 

ST

SE
 47

TH
 S

T

SE
 4

2N
D

 P
L

46
TH

PL SE

PL

SE
 4

5T
H

SE
 3

9T
H

 P
L

162ND AV SE

SE

S
E 

26
T

H P
L

SE
 4

4T
H

 C
T

180TH AVE SE

SE
 4

5T
H

 P
L

AV

SE
 2

9T
H

SE
 2

0T
H

 S
T

SE

140TH AV SE

SE
 4

2N
D

16
4 W

AY S
E

SE
 3

8T
H 

PL

SE
 4

3R
D

W
AY

185TH PL SE

15

SE
 4

2N
D

 S
T

170TH PL SE

45
TH

SE
 47

T H

PL SE

168TH AV

AV SE

162ND  PL SE

16
2N

D

140TH

146TH

130TH AVE SE

ST

SE
 4

4T
H

 S
T

AV SE

SE

AV SE

161ST

165TH AVE SE

SE
 4

4T
H

 S
T

SE
 4

1S
T 

ST

PL S
E

134TH

SE
 4

9T
H

 S
T

SE

133RD

135TH AV SE

155TH PL SE

133RD AV SE

SE
 2

9T
H

139TH AV SE

156TH PL SE

ST

PL

SE
 3

0T
H

 S
T

SE

ST

PL SE

180TH AV

AV SE

SOMERSET

PL

16
3R

D

BL
VD

   
  S

E

SE
 4

2N
D

 P
L

LOPEZ

SE
 2

7T
H

 S
T

DR

17
2N

D
 C

T

AV

SE
 4

1S
T 

ST

ST

ST

SE
 4

4T
H

 P
L

158TH

46
TH

 S
T

SOMERSET    B
LVD   SE

AV SE

19
0T

H

17
3R

D

SE
 4

2N
D 

ST

135TH AV SE

SE
 3

1S
T 

ST

17
5T

H
 P

L 
S

E

SE
 4

2N
D

 S
T

SE 41
ST

   129TH PL SE

149TH PL SE148TH AV SE

SE

SE
 4

8T
H 

D
R

SE
 4

4T
H

 S
T

COAL          CREEK          PKWY          SE

SE
 4

3R
D

 S
T

150TH

187TH

AV

153RD AV SE

164TH AV SE

SE
 2

2N
D

 S
T

134TH AV SE

130th PL SE

161ST

SOMERSET DR SE

15
5T

H

KEY

SE
 2

2N
D

 S
T

147TH

SE
 4

4T
H

SE
 3

1S
T 

ST

SE
 4

5T
H

121ST

W
ES

T 
LA

KE

138TH

144TH

SE
 2

2N
D 

ST

169TH PL SE

139T H AV SE

161ST AV SE

SE
 4

7T
H

 S
T

129TH PL SE

142ND

SE
 4

3R
D

 S
T

40
TH

 P
L

163R
D PL SE

SE

PL SE

181ST

151ST PL SE

SE
 4

2N
D

 S
T

ST

SE
 4

2N
D

 S

SE
   

A
LL

EN
   

R
D

AV SE

SE
 2

3R
D

 S
T

170TH

PL SE

SE
 2

5T
H

 S
T

148TH AVE 

SE
 5

0T
H 

ST

147TH

COAL CREEK PKWY SE

178TH

D

CT

SE
 4

5T
H P

L

PL
 S

E

SE
 3

2N
D

 S
T

PL SE

LA
KE

M
O

NT
   

BL
VD

   
SE

CT

142ND PL SE

AV   SE

NE
W

P
O

R
T

PL SE

122ND

SE

AV SE

163RD

AV  SE

PL

BL
VD

153RD AV SE

KEY

SE
 4

8T
H

 C
T

SE

W
AY

SO
M

ER
SE

T
CT

174TH PL SE

145TH AV SE

PL S
E

SE
 4

5T
H

 S
T

156TH PL SE

SE 44TH

SE

143RD

SE
 4

2N
D

 S
T

44
TH

 C
T

39
TH

CT

165TH CT SE

SE
 E

AS
TG

AT
E 

W
AY

163RD

SE
 4

3R
D

 P
L

SE
 4

6T
H

 W
AY

SE
 4

7T
H

 P
L

PL

SE

RICHARDS ROAD

(132ND AVE SE)

169TH AVE SE

SE
43

R
D

SE
 5

0T
H

 S
T

PL

SE
 4

7T
H

SE
 4

5T
H

 P
L

KE
Y

42
ND

SE

145TH AV SE

148TH

152ND LN SE

CT SE

SE

182ND AV SE

SE
 5

1S
T 

PL

123R

121ST AV SE

145TH

166TH AVE

SE
 4

5T
H 

ST

SE

SE

159TH AV

159TH AV SE

42
N

D

140TH AV SE

45
TH

167TH AV SE

SE

SE
 2

4T
H

 S
T

SE
 3

9T
H

 S
T

15
1S

T

SE

149TH

13
9T

H PL S
E

PH
IL

LI
P

S 
H

IL
L 

R
D

  (
S

E 
35

TH
 P

L)

46
TH

ST

SE
 3

9T
H

 S
T

PL

157TH

HIGHLAND DRIVE SE

KAMBER RD (1
39TH PL SE)

SE

SE
 4

3R
D

 S
T

PL

PL SE

WEST LAKE SAMMAMISH PKWY

SE
 2

5T
H

 S
T

174TH AV SE

168TH AV SE

SE
 4

7T
H

 S
T

PL   SE

SE
 3

3R
D

 P
L

43
R

D

ST

ST

128TH AV SE

120TH AV SE

SE
 4

5T
H

 S
T

PL S
E

SE
 4

0T
H

SE
 2

3R
D

 S
T

20
TH

 S
T

CTSE

SE
 4

2N
D

 S
T

158TH

49
TH

128TH AV SE

136TH AV SE

PL SE

SE
 4

4T
H

141ST CT SE

16
4T

H PL S
E

AV

PL

151ST

120TH AV SE

165TH PL SE

137TH AV SE

SE
 4

8T
H

 D
R

LAKE HEIGHTS

SE
 2

8T
H

 P
L

SE

AV

AV SE

SE

PL

ST
PL SE

117TH AV SE

AV

124TH AV SE

SE
 4

8T
H

 D
R

161ST AV SE

SE
 3

7T
H

 S
T

SE
 4

7T
H

 P
L

189TH

166TH AV SE

PL SE

SE
 4

7T
H

 P
L

SE

SE
 4

8T
H

44
TH

42
N

D

138TH AV SE

SE
 4

3R
D

 P
L

SE
 3

5T
H

 S
T

SE

13
9T

H

SE

SE
 N

E
W

PO
R

T 
W

A
Y

SE
 3

5T
H

 S
T

SE
 3

9T
H 

ST

SE 20
TH

 P
L

SE
 2

8T
H

 S
T

PL

SE

CI
R

C
LE

SE

SE
 E

AS
TG

AT
E

165TH PL SE

171ST AVE SE

SE
 2

8T
H

170TH

162ND

29
TH

45
TH

  S
T

AV   SE

SE

127TH

RICHARDS ROAD

(132ND AVE SE)

 SE)

SE
 4

5T
H

 P
L

148TH AV SE

SE
 2

7T
H

 S
T

152ND

CT

131ST PL SE

SE

45
TH

 C
T

SE
 A

LL
EN

 R
D

SE

121ST

FACTORIA BLVD

SE

17
2N

D AV SE

156TH AV SE

AV    SE

158TH AV SE

167TH AV SE

SE
 3

2N
D

 S
T

(118TH AV SE)

165TH AV SE

SE

PK
W

Y

SE
 4

3R
D

 C
T

153RD AV SE

SE
 44

TH
 P

L

SE
 3

8T
H 

ST

51
ST

AV SE

146TH AV SE

CT

177TH AVE SE

SE
 4

6T
H

 S
T

PL SE

152ND

140TH

SE
 4

2N
D

 P
L

SE
 4

7T
H

 P
L

155TH

AV SE

KE
Y

165TH AV SE

142ND AV SE

SE
 4

9 
PL

SE
 2

1S
T 

PL

47
TH

 P
L

19
1S

T

45
TH

SE
 2

6T
H

 S
T

SE

PL
 S

E

SE
 4

6T
H

122ND AV SE

SE
 3

7T
H

SE
 4

7T
H

 S
T

SE
 4

1S
T 

ST

139TH AV SE

SE
 2

7T
H

 S
T

145TH AV

134TH AVE SE

LA
N

D
ER

H
O

LM

SE
 A

LL
EN

 R
D

CASCADE

130TH AV SE

PL S
E

AV SE

145TH AV SE

46
TH

  S
T

SE
 4

2N
D

AV SE

128TH AV SE

SE
 4

5T
H

 S
T

173RD AV

146TH AV SE

131ST

133RD AV SE

LN

182ND PL SE

SE
 4

7T
H

48
TH

SE 49TH PL

141ST PL

SE N
EWPORT W

Y

PL

CT

19
1S

T

SE
 4

3R
D

 P
L

SE

45
TH

SE

18
7T

H  A
V

CT
 S

E

SE

186TH PL

13
9T

H

125TH AV SE

174TH

SE

PL

SE
 4

9T
H

 S
T

AV SE

145TH PL SE

SE

AV SE

ST

SE

166TH

155TH PL SE

AV SE

ST

SOMERSET PL

156TH AV SE

136TH PL SE

125TH AV SE

155TH

SE
 4

6T
H

 S
T

132ND AV SE

PL S
E

149TH

ST

49
TH

 P
L

SE

14
6T

H
 P

L 
S

E

SE
 4

4T
H

 W
AY

KA
M

B
ER

 R
D

AV SE

119TH AV SE

SE

SE
 4

8T
H

 P
L

SE
 2

6T
H

 S
T

124TH AV SE

SE 51
ST PL

SE
 47

TH
 C

T

SE 51ST ST

166TH AV SE

134TH PL SE

151ST AV SE

AV S
E

134TH AV SE

AV  SE

145TH

SE
 4

5T
H

 C
T

168TH AV SE

SE
  4

6T
H

SE
 4

1S
T 

ST

SE

   
SE

 3
8T

H
 P

L

SE
 5

0T
H

SE
 4

PL SE

135TH PL SE

ST

SE
 2

0T
H

 S
T

SE
 4

8T
H

 S
T

135TH

SE
 2

0T
H

SE

LA
KE

M
O

NT
 B

LV
D 

SE

SE

129TH AV SE

127TH

SE
 46

TH

163RD

147TH PL SE

SE
 44

TH

SE
 4

7T
H

 P
L

LI
P 

K
EY

38
TH

163RD AV SE

171ST AVE SE

SE
 2

3R
D

 P
L

169TH PL SE

SE
 4

5T
H

 P
L

PL SE

136TH PL SE

SE
 4

3R
D

 S
T

PL

(118TH AV SE)

ST

SE
 3

7T
H

 S
T

SE
 4

6T
H

SE

SE
  4

6T
H

130th PL SE

135TH AV SE

132ND AV SE

122ND

118TH

SE
 2

3R
D 

ST

SE
 3

8T
H

 S
T

136TH

SE

SE
 4

5T
H

 S
T

ST

ST

ST

AV SE

PL

SE

46
TH

26
TH

AV

149TH AV SE

PL

SE

SE

SE
 29

TH

CT

171ST AV SE

1

SE
 4

0T
H 

ST

152ND AV SE

142ND AV SE

PL

SE
 3

0T
H

 S
T

17
2N

D P
L 

SE

136TH

SE
 4

2N
D

 S
T

WEST LAKE SAMMAMISH PKWY SE

SE 38
TH

ST

167TH AV SE

121ST

SE

SE
 4

4T
H

 P
L

AV

Y

SE

123RD AV SE

SE
 5

2N
D

 S
T

47
T

H
 P

L

ST

SE

SE
 33

RD S
T

SE
 4

9T
H

 P
L

ST

SE
 2

9 
PL

SE
 N

EW
PO

RT
 W

AY

137TH PL SE

162ND AV SE

KEY

SE
 3

3R
D

 C
IR

C

SE

EA
ST

G
AT

E

SE

SE
 4

6T
H

 S
T

50
TH

13
6T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE
 2

6T
H

 S
T

136TH AV SE

134TH PL

167TH

W    
  L

AKE   
   S

AMM
AM

IS
H

   
   

PK
W

Y 
   

  S
E

AV    SE

SE
 3

1S
T 

ST

SE

SE
 2

3R
D

 P
L

SE

146TH

SE
 N

EW
PO

RT 
W

AY

18
9T

H

SE
 4

5T
H 

PL

150TH

SE
 A

LL
EN

 R
D

139TH AV SE

SE

150TH

PL S
E

145TH AV SE

SE
 5

2N
D

 S
T

PL
 S

E

SA
M

M
AM

IS
H

146TH

158TH

156TH

145TH AV SE

157TH

E 
48

TH
 S

T

CT

133RD AV SE

SE
 4

2N
D

 C
T

FACTORIA BLVD SE

173RD

SE
 4

2N
D

 P
L

PL

SE 23RD LN

140TH WY

(S

E 
32

N
D

 S
T )

SE
 5

0T
H

 S
T

AV

170TH

142ND

AV SE

ST

126TH

158TH AV SE

SE
 2

6T
H

 P
L

142ND

SE

131ST PL

SE
 5

1S
T

149TH

CT

ST

AV  SE

SE

141ST

ST

AV

176TH

PL

143RD AV SE

AV SE

AV    SE

123RD AV SE

46
TH

SE
 4

5T
H

W
AY

SE

SE
 5

0T
H

 S
T

49
TH

SE 22ND PL

SE

127TH PL SE

SE
 4

8 
C

T

SE
 2

4T
H

 S
T

17
1S

T
 A

VE
 S

E

21
ST

169TH AVE SE

SE
 2

3R
D 

ST

CT

145TH AV SE

SE

15
9T

H A
V 

SE

144TH AV SE

15
7T

H 
AV

 S
E

SE
 4

2N
D

 S
T

SE
 2

3R
D

 S
T

SE
 4

7T
H

SE
 4

4T
H

SOMERSET

119TH AV SE

SE
 3

8T
H

 S
T

AV SE

139TH

SE 46
TH

 S
T

SE
  2

0T
H

PL

SE
 4

9T
H

 S
T

E 
48

TH
 S

T

122ND AV SE

SE
 4

1S
T 

PL

EA
S

TG
AT

E

138TH

SE
 4

7T
H 

ST

AV SE

SE
 2

1S
T 

ST

ST

SE
 4

0T
H

 S
T

190TH

130TH PL SE

SE

PL SE

AV   SE

SE

CT

PL
 S

E

PL

170TH AV SE

153RD

141ST AV SE

SE
 4

0T
H

 P
L

14
6T

H

155TH

PL

SE
 4

4T
H

 P
L

SE
 2

8T
H

 S
T

ST

SE
 4

5T
H

 P
L

181ST

167TH

123RD AV SE

SE 46
TH

 P
L

SE
 4

7T
H

 P
L

42
N

D
 P

L

AV SE

PL

126TH AV SE

AV

FACTORIA BLVD

169TH

SE
 4

3R
D

 S
T

SE
 2

7T
H

 S
T

SE

3

2N
D 

S
T

ST

187TH

SE
 4

7T
H

 S
T

34
TH

SE
 5

0T
H

 S
T

PL. SE

154TH AV SE

140TH AV SE

SE
 2

1S
T 

PL

133RD AV SE

1

12
3R

D P
L 

SE

SE 50
TH

 P
L

SE

RD

SOMERSET BLVD SE

47
TH

 P
L

AV SE

CT SE

SE

172ND AV SE

SE
 4

2N
D

 S
T

150TH

SE
 4

5T
H

 P
L

138TH AV SE

119TH AV SE

1 60TH CT SE

SOMERSET

124TH AV SE

SE
 4

8T
H

 D
R

AV SE

AV SE

RICHARDS RD

155TH AV SE

PL

140TH AV SE

177TH

SE
 4

5T
H

 P
L

16
3R

D PL

CT

176TH

135TH

SE
 4

5T
H P

L

SE
 2

5T
H

 S
T

16
4 

W
A

Y 
S

E

AV    SE

SE
 4

1S
T

123RD PL SE

25
TH

SE
 4

4T
H

47
TH

 P
L

SE

SE
 4

6T
H 

W
AY

SE
 4

5T
H

 S
T

SE

171ST AV SE

PL

139TH AV

139TH AV SE

14
4T

H
 P

L 
S

E

LAKE HEIGHTS

159TH AV SE

AV SE

SE
 4

6T
H 

ST

SE

18
9T

H

PL

46
TH

SE
 4

2N
D

 P
L

20
TH

 P
L SE

SE
 4

3R
D

 P
L

SE 47TH PL

SE
 4

6T
H 

ST

SE
 4

5T
H

 P
L

SE
 4

8T
H

 P
L

PL SE

SE
 4

6T
H 

ST

127TH AVE SE

AV SE

172ND

SE

SE
 2

2N
D

189TH

152ND PL SE

43
R

D

AV SE

38
TH

AV SE

188TH

173RD PL

FACTORIA BLVD

PL SE

14
7T

H

187TH

SE

SE
 4

6T
H 

PL

144TH AV SE

123RD AV SE

ST

SE 47TH PL

155TH

151ST

SE
 3

0T
H

 S
T

41
ST

PL

134TH PL SE

PL SE

146TH PL SE

141ST

151ST PL SE

47
TH

SE
 4

7T
H

 S
T

170TH

26TH

SE
 2

1S
T 

PL

PL SE

160TH

SE
 4

8T
H 

CT

SE
 46

TH
 P

L

28
TH

HI
G

H
LA

N
D

 D
R

IV
E 

SE

ST

138TH AV SE

SE
 3

7T
H

AV SE

40
TH

14
7T

H

142 PL SE

SE
 4

2N
D

 S
T

ST

SE

151ST AV SE

O
R

T

SE
 4

7T
H

 S
T

46
TH

166TH PL SE

SE

SE

46TH

16
6T

H A
V 

SE

SE

SE
 4

5T
H

 C
T

SE
 2

4T
H

 S
T

154TH

AV SE

AV SE

164TH AV SE

15
8T

H AV SE

14
2N

D

155TH

SE
 2

3R
D

 P
L

168TH AV

139TH PL SE

131ST

FACTORIA BLVD

SE
 2

3R
D

 S
T

SE
 4

0T
H

 P
L

AV SE

186TH AV SE

SE
 2

2N
D

ST

SE

161ST

31
ST

AV SE

PL SE

SE
 2

5T
H

 S
T

PL

PL

AV SE

VASHON

PL

AV SE

SE

47
TH

168TH

153RD AV SE

SE
 4

5T
H

 P
L

W
AY

122ND A

V S
E

137TH AV SE

AV SE

SE
 2

3R
D

 S
T

AV SE

SE

174TH

SE
 2

1S
T

(S
E 

34
TH

 S
T)

PH
IL

LI
P

S 
H

IL
L 

R
D

42
N

D

AV

151ST AV SE

165TH

AV

SE 46
TH

 P
L

ST

PL

14
5T

H 
PL

 S
E

154TH

LA
N

D

ERHOLM    C
IR

C
LE

KEY

SE
 N

EW
PO

RT
 W

AY

AV SE

118TH

SE
 4

9T
H

AV   SE

154TH PL SE

SE
 2

0T
H

 P
L

PL

PL

SE
 4

4T
H

 S
T

PL

SE
 40

TH

SE
 4

0T
H

 S
T

SE

SE

157TH AV SE

SE

SE

162ND

1

64TH AVE SE

SE
 4

1S
T

PL SE

CT

SE
 4

2N
D

 P
L

SE
 4

1S
T 

ST

SE
 4

9T
H

 P
L

SE
 4

0T
H

SE
 2

5T
H

 S
T

164TH PL SE

45
TH

¥§ ¦90

¥§ ¦90

R
-2

0

R
-1

0

R
-3

.5

R
-5

O

PO

O
LB

R
-7

.5

R
-5

LI

R
-5

R
-5

R
-1

.8

R
-5

LI

R
-1

R
-5

R
-5

R
-2

0

R
-1

0

R
-5

R
-5

R
-3

.5

F-
1

C
BC

B

R
-2

0

R
-3

0

O
LB

R
-1

5

N
B

R
-3

0

LI

R
-5

R
-1

0

R
-3

.5

R
-2

0

O
LB

R
-1

0

R
-4

R
-3

.5

R
-2

0

R
-2

0

R
-1

5

R
-3

.5

R
-3

0

R
-5

R
-2

0

F-
2

R
-2

0
R

-5

C
B

R
-5

R
-5

R
-2

0

R
-5

R
-3

.5

R
-5

R
-3

0

R
-1

5
R

-5

R
-5

R
-5

G
C

O
LB

R
-5

R
-5

R
-3

.5

R
-2

0

O
LB

O
LB

R
-3

.5

R
-1

O

R
-3

.5

R
-4

O
LB

R
-2

.5

C
B

N
B

R
-3

.5

O
LB

O
LB

C
B

R
-5

C
B

R
-1

0

O
LB

F-
3

R
-1

0

C
B

LI

R
-3

0

R
-2

0

R
-5

R
-3

.5

R
-5

O

G
C

R
-2

0

R
-5

R
-1

0

R
-5

R
-5

R
-5

R
-2

0

R
-3

.5

O

R
-3

.5

LI

R
-2

0

O

C
B

O
LB

-O
S

R
-2

.5

R
-5

R
-5

R
-2

0

R
-2

0

R
-2

0

LI

O
LB

R
-3

.5

O
LB

R
-2

0

O
LB

R
-2

0

C
B

O

R
-5

R
-5

R
-5

R
-2

0

R
-5

R
-1

.8

R
-5

R
-2

0

R
-5

R
-5

R
-2

0

R
-5

G
C

N
B

R
-2

0

R
-5

R
-3

.5

R
-5

R
-2

0

C
B

PO

R
-2

0

LI

R
-3

0

R
-5

O
LB

R
-2

.5

R
-2

0

R
-2

0

G
C

R
-1

R
-2

0

R
-3

.5

R
-3

.5

R
-2

0

R
-2

0

R
-2

0

R
-5

O

LI

R
-5

R
-5

R
-3

0

R
-2

.5

O
LB

LI

LI

R
-5

R
-1

5

R
-1

0

R
-2

0

R
-2

0

N
B

R
-5

R
-1

5

R
-2

.5

R
-5

G
C

R
-1

0

C
B

R
-1

5

R
-1

.8

R
-7

.5

LI

R
-3

.5

R
-2

0

R
-5

R
-5

R
-4

R
-1

R
-2

0

R
-2

0

O
LB

O
LB

C
B

O
LBR

-2
0

C
B

R
-2

0

R
-5

R
-1

0

R
-1

OPO

O
LB

PO

R
-1

.8

R
-2

0

0
1,

00
0

2,
00

0
3,

00
0

4,
00

0
50

0
Fe

et

[
Ex

is
tin

g 
Zo

ni
ng

40
5

90

O
LB

-O
S 

= 
O

�
ce

 a
nd

 L
im

ite
d 

Bu
si

ne
ss

 –
 O

pe
n 

Sp
ac

e
O

LB
 =

 O
�

ce
 a

nd
 L

im
ite

d 
Bu

si
ne

ss
O

 =
 O

�
ce

PO
 =

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l O
�

ce
LI

 =
 L

ig
ht

 In
du

st
ria

l
G

C 
= 

G
en

er
al

 C
om

m
er

ci
al

CB
 =

 C
om

m
un

ity
 B

us
in

es
s

N
B 

– 
N

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d 

bu
si

ne
ss

F-
2 

&
 F

-3
 =

 F
ac

to
ria

R-
10

 &
 R

-2
0 

= 
M

ul
tif

am
ily

 R
es

id
en

tia
l

R-
5 

= 
Si

ng
le

-F
am

ily
 R

es
id

en
tia

l

La
ke

Ph
an

to
m

Pr
im

ar
y 

St
ud

y 
A

re
a

U
ni

nc
or

po
ra

te
d 

K
in

g 
C

ou
nt

y 
(E

as
tg

at
e 

Po
te

nt
ia

l A
nn

ex
at

io
n 

A
re

a)
¥§ ¦40

5

¥§ ¦90
E

as
tg

at
e

P
ar

k

R
ob

in
sw

oo
d

C
om

m
un

ity
P

ar
k

C
oa

l C
re

ek
 P

ar
k

>
>

>

>

>

>
>

>

>

>

>

>

   

SE
 E

as
tg

at
e 

W
ay

S
E

 3
2n

d 
S

t.

S
E

 3
0t

h 
S

t.

S
E

 2
6t

h 
S

t.

Richards Road
S

E
 2

8t
h 

S
t.

Factoria Blvd.

139th Ave. SE

142nd Place SE

158th Ave
 SE

160th Ave
. S

E

161st A
ve SE

>

>

Pr
im

ar
y 

St
ud

y 
A

re
a

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
In

flu
en

ce
 Z

on
e

Pr
im

ar
y 

St
ud

y 
A

re
a

R
ic

h
a

rd
s 

V
a

ll
e

y
 

In
d

u
st

ri
a

l 
A

re
a

E
a

st
ga

te
P

a
rk

 &
 R

id
e

L
o

eh
m

an
n

’s
 

P
la

za
T-

M
o

b
il

e

B
el

le
vu

e 
C

o
ll

eg
e

B
o

ei
n

g

M
ic

ro
so

ft

V
er

iz
o

n

E
a

st
ga

te
P

la
za

Fu
tu

re
P

a
rk

Su
n

se
t

V
il

la
ge

 
   

 P
ri

m
ar

y 
St

ud
y 

A
re

a 
pr

im
ar

ily
 c

on
ta

in
s 

th
e 

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

no
rt

h 
an

d 
so

ut
h 

of
 I-

90
.

 
   

 P
ri

m
ar

y 
St

ud
y 

A
re

a 
bo

un
da

ri
es

:
 

   
 G

en
er

al
ly

 re
ac

h 
fr

om
 I-

40
5 

to
 1

61
st
 A

ve
nu

e 
SE

,  
   

 a
nd

 
fr

om
 S

E 
24

th
 S

tr
ee

t t
o 

SE
 3

8th
 S

tr
ee

t (
la

nd
 u

se
 c

ha
ng

es
 

co
ul

d 
oc

cu
r 

w
ith

in
 th

is
 a

re
a)

 
   

 E
xt

en
d 

ea
st

 a
lo

ng
 I-

90
 to

 th
e 

La
ke

m
on

t B
lv

d 
in

te
rc

ha
ng

e 
(f

or
 tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

st
ud

y 
on

ly
)

Pr
im

ar
y	
St
ud

y	
A
re
a	
pr
im

ar
ily
	c
on

ta
in
s	
th
e	
co
m
m
er
ci
al
	p
ro
pe

rti
es
	n
or
th
	a
nd

	s
ou

th
	o
f	I
-9
0.
	

Pr
im

ar
y	
St
ud

y	
A
re
a	
bo

un
da
rie

s:
•	

G
en

er
al
ly
	re

ac
h	
fr
om

	I-
40

5	
to
	1
61
st
	A
ve
nu

e	
SE
,	a
nd

	fr
om

	S
E	
24
th
	S
tr
ee

t	t
o	
SE
	3
8t
h	
St
re
et
	(l
an

d	
us
e	
ch
an

ge
s	
co
ul
d	
oc
cu
r	
w
ith

in
	th

is
	a
re
a)

•	
Ex
te
nd

	e
as
t	a

lo
ng

	I-
90

	to
	th

e	
La
ke
m
on

t	B
lv
d	
in
te
rc
ha
ng
e	
(fo

r	
tr
an
sp
or
ta
tio

n	
st
ud

y	
on

ly
)

Pr
ed

om
in
an
t	Z

on
in
g:
	O
LB
	(O

ffi
ce
	a
nd

	L
im

ite
d	
Bu

si
ne

ss
),	
CB

	(C
om

m
un

ity
	B
us
in
es
s)
,	L
I	(
Li
gh
t	I
nd

us
tr
ia
l)



La
ke

P
ha

nt
om

M
er

ce
r S

lo
ug

h 
N

at
ur

e 
P

ar
k

C
oa

l C
re

ek
 P

ar
k

W
eo

w
na

 P
ar

k

Ea
st

ga
te

 P
ar

k

LA
N

D
FI

LL
 P

A
R

K
 S

IT
E

R
ob

in
sw

oo
d 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

ar
k

C
oa

l C
re

ek
 P

ar
k

M
er

ce
r S

lo
ug

h 
N

at
ur

e 
P

ar
k

La
ke

 H
ill

s 
G

re
en

be
lt

So
m

er
se

t P
ar

k

N
or

el
iu

s 
P

ro
pe

rty
 &

 4
1.

5 
O

pe
n 

Sp
ac

e

M
er

ce
r S

lo
ug

h 
N

at
ur

e 
P

ar
k

Su
nr

is
e 

P
ar

k

La
tta

w
oo

d 
P

ar
k

Sp
iri

tri
dg

e 
P

ar
k

Su
ns

et
 R

av
in

e 
O

pe
n 

Sp
ac

e

H
or

iz
on

 H
ei

gh
ts

 O
pe

n 
S

pa
ce

Su
ns

et
 M

in
i P

ar
k

Th
e 

H
ei

gh
ts

 O
pe

n 
Sp

ac
e

Su
ns

et
 M

in
i P

ar
k

R
ic

ha
rd

s 
Va

lle
y 

O
pe

n 
S

pa
ce

La
ke

m
on

t -
 S

tra
tfo

rd
 O

pe
n 

S
pa

ce
W

hi
sp

er
in

g 
H

ei
gh

ts
 O

pe
n 

S
pa

ce

R
ic

ha
rd

s 
Va

lle
y 

O
pe

n 
S

pa
ce

41
.5

 M
in

i P
ar

k

C
ol

lin
gw

oo
d 

O
pe

n 
S

pa
ce

C
re

st
w

oo
d 

P
ro

pe
rty

N
ew

po
rt 

W
ay

 O
pe

n 
S

pa
ce

So
m

er
se

t H
ig

hl
an

ds
 O

pe
n 

S
pa

ce

SE
 4

0t
h 

St
re

et
 B

oa
t R

am
p

C
ol

lin
gw

oo
d 

M
in

i P
ar

k

La
ke

m
on

t C
om

m
un

ity
 P

ar
k 

& 
O

pe
n 

S
pa

ce

Vu
em

on
t S

ou
th

 O
pe

n 
S

pa
ce

N
or

w
oo

d 
Vi

lla
ge

 N
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d 
Pa

rk

Si
lv

er
le

af
 O

pe
n 

Sp
ac

e

N
ew

ca
st

le
 B

ea
ch

 P
ar

k

C
ol

lin
gw

oo
d 

O
pe

n 
S

pa
ce

Vu
em

on
t S

ou
th

 O
pe

n 
S

pa
ce

H
or

iz
on

 H
ig

hl
an

ds
 O

pe
n 

S
pa

ce

Sk
yr

id
ge

 P
ar

k

R
ic

ha
rd

s 
Va

lle
y 

O
pe

n 
S

pa
ce

So
m

er
se

t N
or

th
 S

lo
pe

 O
pe

n 
S

pa
ce

Vu
em

on
t S

ou
th

 O
pe

n 
S

pa
ce

0
1,

00
0

2,
00

0
3,

00
0

4,
00

0
50

0
Fe

et
[

 
 

 
Pa

rk
s,

 O
pe

n 
Sp

ac
es

 &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n
O

pe
n 

U
se

Pa
rk

R
ec

re
at

io
n

B
al

ly
’s

S
un

se
t 

La
ne

s
C

O
B

 
ut

ili
tie

s
SE

 E
as

tg
at

e 
W

ay

S
E

 3
2n

d 
S

t.

S
E

 3
0t

h 
S

t.

S
E

 2
6t

h 
S

t.

Richards Road

S
E 

28
th

 S
t.

Factoria Blvd.

139th Ave. SE

142nd Place SE

158th Ave
 SE

160th Ave
. S

E

161st A
ve SE

156th Ave
 SE

148th Ave. SE

Ex
is

tin
g 

Pa
rk

s,
 

O
pe

n 
Sp

ac
es

 &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n

40
5

90

La
ke

P
ha

nt
om

SE
 4

1S
T

SE
 2

2N
D

 S
T

SE

156TH AVE SE

W
AY

AV

SE
 4

3R
D

 S
T

SE
 4

4T
H

 P
L

AV   SE

SE
 3

8T
H

 S
T

47
TH

 P
L

SE

SE
 2

7T
H

SE
 4

2N
D 

ST

SE

14
6T

H

SE

179TH AV SE

(S
E 

26
TH

 S
T)

16
2N

D PL S
E

SE
 N

EW
PO

RT
 W

Y

SE
 4

7T
H

 S
T

14
8T

H

SE
 4

7T
H

 P
L

AV SE

AV SE

SE
 4

4T
H

 S
T

PL

ST

SE
 2

3R
D

 P
L

SE
 2

8T
H

 S
T

163RD

129TH AV SE

SE

140TH

160TH AVE SE

SE
 2

2N
D

 S
T

DR

AV SE

152ND PL SE

SE
 2

7T
H

 S
T

ST

SE

19
1S

T

KAMBER RD (140TH PL S

SE

17
7T

H 
AV

 S
E

SE

47
TH

SE 40TH PL

140TH AV SE

SE

AV SE

43
RD

PL
14

7T
H A

V 
SE

146TH PL SE

156TH AV S

SE
 N

E
W

PO
R

T 
W

A
Y

SE

SE 47T H W
AY

SE
 4

3R
D

 P
L

SE
 N

EW
PO

RT
 W

Y
SE

 4
7T

H
 P

L

CT

142ND

182ND

PL

SE

SE
 3

6T
H

 S
T

171ST AVE SE

SE
 2

5T
H

 P
L

ALLEN RD.

SE
 4

3R
D

 S
T

SE

SE

25
TH

150TH AVE SE

SE
 4

9T
H

 S
T

PL SE

SE
 4

5T
H

SE
 4

1S
T 

ST

135TH PL

130TH AV SE

SE

14
7T

H A
V 

SE

SE

189TH AV SE

120TH PL SE

44
TH

SE
 2

9T
H

 S
T

163RD

AV SE

ST

PL SE

SE
 2

0T
H

H
EN

R
Y 

B
O

C
K

 R
D

SE
 4

2N
D

 P
L

PL

SE
 3

7T
H

 S
T

SE
 4

7T
H

 P
L

ST
SE

SOMERSET DR SE

SE
 4

5T
H

 P
L

154TH PL

AV SE

ST

SE

SE

167TH AV SE

138TH PL SE

SE
 2

1S
T 

ST

AV SE

157TH

PL

172ND

SE A
LL

EN

PL
 S

E

SE
 4

4T
H

 C
T

CT SE

14
2N

D

SE
 2

3R
D 

ST

SE

26
TH

(132ND AV SE)

SE

SE
 4

7T
H

 P
L

PL

COAL CREEK PKWY SE

AV SE

133RD  AV SE

SE 21
ST PL

152ND 

AV

CT SE

PL

ST

SE
 4

4T
H

 S
T

ST
W

AY

CT

118TH AVE SE

SOMERSET

SE
 2

1S
T 

ST

PL

ST

136TH PL SE

190TH

47TH

153RD AV SE

SE

AV SE

142ND PL SE

129TH

SE NEWPORT WAY

SE
 A

LL
EN

 R
D

142 PL SE

134TH PL SE

SE

SE
 4

3R
D 

ST

SE
 47

TH
 S

T

SE
 4

2N
D

 P
L

46
TH

PL

SE
 4

5T
H

SE
 3

9T
H

 P
L

162ND AV SE

SE

S
E 

26
T

H P
L

SE
 4

4T
H

 C
T

180TH AVE SE

SE
 4

5T
H

 P
L

AV

SE
 2

9T
H

SE
 2

0T
H

 S
T

140TH AV SE

SE
 4

2N
D

16
4 W

AY S
E

SE
 3

8T
H 

PL

PL

SE
 4

3R
D

W
AY

185TH PL SE

153RD AV

SE
 4

2N
D

 S
T

170TH PL SE

45
TH

SE
 4

7
T H

PL SE

192ND

168TH AV SE

AV SE

162ND  PL SE

16
2N

D

140TH

146TH

SE
 4

7T
H 

PL

130TH AVE SE

ST

SE
 4

4T
H

 S
T

AV SE

SE

AV SE

161ST

165TH AVE SE

SE
 4

4T
H

 S
T

SE
 4

1S
T 

ST

PL S
E

134TH

SE

133RD

135TH AV SE

133RD AV SE

SE
 2

9T
H

139TH AV SE

156TH PL SE

ST

PL

SE
 3

0T
H

 S
T

SE

ST

PL SE

180TH AV

AV SE

SOMERSET

PL

16
3R

D

BL
VD

   
  S

E

SE
 4

2N
D

 P
L

SE
 2

7T
H

 S
T

154TH 

17
2N

D
 C

T

AV

SE
 4

1S
T 

ST

1

ST

ST

SE
 4

4T
H

 P
L

158TH

46
TH

 S
T

SOMERSET    BLVD   SE

AV SE

19
0T

H

17
3R

D

SE
 4

2N
D 

ST

135TH AV SE

SE
 3

1S
T 

ST

17
5T

H
 P

L 
S

E

SE
 4

2N
D

 S
T

SE 41
ST

   129TH PL SE

149TH PL SE148TH AV SE

SE

SE
 4

8T
H 

D
R

SE
 4

4T
H

 S
T

COAL          CREEK          PKWY          SE

SE
 4

3R
D

 S
T

150TH

187TH

AV

155TH 

153RD AV SE

164TH AV SE

SE
 2

2N
D

 S
T

134TH AV SE

130th PL SE

161ST

SOMERSET DR SE

SE
 2

2N
D

 S
T

147TH

SE
 4

4T
H

SE
 3

1S
T 

ST

SE
 4

5T
H

121ST

W
ES

T 
LA

KE

138TH

144TH

SE
 2

2N
D 

ST

169TH PL SE

139TH AV SE

161ST AV SE

129TH PL SE

SE
 4

3R
D

 S
T

40
TH

 P
L

163RD PL SE

SE

PL SE

181ST

151ST PL SE

SE
 4

2N
D

 S
T

SE
 1

9T
H

 P
L

ST

SE
 4

2N
D

 S
T

SE
   

A
LL

EN
   

R
D

PL

AV SE

SE
 2

3R
D

 S
T

170TH

PL SE

SE
 2

5T
H

 S
T

148TH AVE SE

147TH

COAL CREEK PKWY SE

178TH

HARDS RD

CT

SE
 4

5T
H P

L

PL
 S

E

SE
 3

2N
D

 S
T

PL SE

CT

142ND PL SE

AV   SE

NE
W

P
O

R
T

PL SE

122ND

SE

AV SE

163RD

AV  SE

PL

BL
VD

153RD AV SE

SE

W
AY

SO
M

ER
SE

T
CT

174TH PL SE

145TH AV SE

PL S
E

SE
 4

5T
H

 S
T

156TH PL SE

SE 44TH

SE

143RD

SE
 4

2N
D

 S
T

44
TH

 C
T

39
TH

CT

165TH CT SE

SE
 E

AS
TG

AT
E 

W
AY

163RD

SE
 4

3R
D

 P
L

SE

SE
 4

6T
H

 W
AY

SE
 4

7T
H

 P
L

PL

SE

RICHARDS ROAD

(132ND AVE SE)

169TH AVE SE

SE
43

R
D

SE

PL

SE
 4

7T
H

SE
 4

5T
H

 P
L

42
ND

SE

145TH AV SE

148TH

152ND LN SE

CT SE

SE

182ND AV SE

SE
 1

9T
H

123RD AVE S

121ST AV SE

145TH

166TH AVE

SE
 4

5T
H 

ST

SE

159TH AV

159TH AV SE

42
N

D

140TH AV SE

45
TH

SE

SE
 2

4T
H

 S
T

SE
 3

9T
H

 S
T

15
1S

T

SE

149TH

13
9T

H PL S
E

PH
IL

LI
P

S 
H

IL
L 

R
D

  (
S

E 
35

TH
 P

L)

46
TH

ST

SE
 3

9T
H

 S
T

PL

157TH

HIGHLAND DRIVE SE

KAMBER RD (1
39TH PL SE)

SE

AV

SE
 4

3R
D

 S
T

PL

PL SE

WEST LAKE SAMMAMISH PKWY

SE
 2

5T
H

 S
T

174TH AV SE

168TH AV SE

SE
 4

7T
H

 S
T

PL   SE

SE
 3

3R
D

 P
L

43
R

D

ST

ST

128TH AV SE

SE
 4

5T
H

 S
T

PL S
E

SE
 4

0T
H

SE
 2

3R
D

 S
T

20
TH

 S
T

CTSE

SE
 4

2N
D

 S
T

14

158TH

49
TH

128TH AV SE

136TH AV SE

PL SE

SE
 4

4T
H

141ST CT SE

16
4T

H PL S
E

AV

PL

151ST

120TH AV SE

165TH PL SE

SE

137TH AV SE

SE
 4

8T
H

 D
R

SE
 2

8T
H

 P
L

SE

AV

AV SE

SE

PL

ST

PL SE

AV

124TH AV SE

SE
 4

8T
H

 D
R

161ST AV SE

SE
 3

7T
H

 S
T

SE
 4

7T
H

 P
L

189TH

166TH AV SE

PL SE

SE
 4

7T
H

 P
L

SE

SE
 4

8T
H

44
TH

42
N

D

138TH AV SE

SE
 4

3R
D

 P
L

SE
 3

5T
H

 S
T

SE

13
9T

H

SE

SE
 N

E
W

PO
R

T 
W

A
Y

SE
 3

5T
H

 S
T

SE
 3

9T
H 

ST

SE 20
TH

 P
L

SE
 2

8T
H

 S
T

PL

SE

CI
R

C
LE

SE

SE
 E

AS
TG

AT
E

165TH PL SE

171ST AVE SE

SE
 2

8T
H

170TH

AV

162ND

29
TH

45
TH

  S
T

AV   SE

SE

127TH

RICHARDS ROAD

(132ND AVE SE)

2ND AVE SE)

SE
 4

5T
H

 P
L

148TH AV SE

SE
 2

7T
H

 S
T

152ND

CT

SE

45
TH

 C
T

SE
 A

LL
EN

 R
D

121ST

FACTORIA BLVD

17
2N

D AV SE

156TH AV SE

AV    SE

158TH AV SE

167TH AV SE

SE
 3

2N
D

 S
T

165TH AV SE

SE

PK
W

Y

SE
 4

3R
D

 C
T

153RD AV SE

SE
 44

TH
 P

L

SE
 3

8T
H 

ST

AV SE

146TH AV SE

CT

177TH AVE SE

SE
 4

6T
H

 S
T

PL SE

152ND

140TH

SE
 4

2N
D

 P
L

SE
 4

7T
H

 P
L

155TH

AV SE

165TH AV SE

142ND AV SE

SE
 4

9 
PL

SE
 2

1S
T 

PL

19
1S

T

45
TH

SE
 2

6T
H

 S
T

SE

PL
 S

E

SE
 4

6T
H

122ND AV SE

SE
 3

7T
H

SE
 4

7T
H

 S
T

SE
 4

1S
T 

ST

139TH AV SE

SE
 2

7T
H

 S
T

134TH AVE SE

LA
N

D
ER

H
O

LM

SE
 A

LL
EN

 R
D

130TH AV SE130TH AV SE

145TH AV SE

46
TH

  S
T

SE
 4

2N
D

AV SE

128TH AV SE

SE
 4

5T
H

 S
T

173RD AV

146TH AV SE

131ST

133RD AV SE

LN

182ND PL SE

SE
 4

7T
H

48
TH

SE 49TH PL

141ST PL

SE N
EWPORT W

Y

PL

CT

19
1S

T

SE
 4

3R
D

 P
L

SE

45
TH

SE

18
7T

H  A
V

CT
 S

E

SE

186TH PL

125TH AV SE

174TH

SE

PL

W

AV SE

145TH PL SE

SE

AV SE

ST

SE

166TH

155TH PL SE

AV SE

ST

SOMERSET PL

136TH PL SE

125TH AV SE

155TH

SE
 4

6T
H

 S
T

132ND AV SE

PL S
E

149TH

ST

SE

14
6T

H
 P

L 
S

E

SE
 4

4T
H

 W
AY

KA
M

B
ER

 R
D

AV SE

SE

SE
 4

8T
H

 P
L

SE
 2

6T
H

 S
T

124TH AV SE

SE
 47

TH
 C

T

166TH AV SE

134TH PL SE

151ST AV SE

AV S
E

134TH AV SE

AV  SE

145TH

SE
 4

5T
H

 C
T

168TH AV SE

SE
  4

6T
H

SE
 4

1S
T 

ST

SE

192ND

   
SE

 3
8T

H
 P

L

SE
 4

5T
H

 S
T

PL SE

135TH PL SE

ST

SE
 2

0T
H

 S
T

SE
 4

8T
H

 S
T

135TH

SE
 2

0T
H

SE

W      L
AK

SE

129TH AV SE

127TH

SE
 46

TH

163RD

147TH PL SE

SE
 44

TH

SE
 4

7T
H

 P
L

38
TH

163RD AV SE

171ST AVE SE

SE
 2

3R
D

 P
L

169TH PL SE

SE
 4

5T
H

 P
L

PL SE

SE
 4

3R
D

 S
T

PL

SE
 3

7T
H

 S
T

SE
 4

6T
H

SE
  4

6T
H

130th PL SE

135TH AV SE

132ND AV SE

122ND

SE
 2

3R
D 

ST

SE
 3

8T
H

 S
T

136TH

SE

SE
 4

5T
H

 S
T

ST

ST

AV SE

PL

SE

46
TH

26
TH

AV

149TH AV SE

PL

SE

SE

SE
 29

TH

CT

171ST AV SE

138TH PL

SE
 4

0T
H 

ST

152ND AV SE

142ND AV SE

PL

SE
 3

0T
H

 S
T

17
2N

D P
L 

SE

136TH

SE
 4

2N
D

 S
T

WEST LAKE SAMMAMISH PKWY SE

SE 38
TH

ST

167TH AV SE

121ST

SE

SE
 4

4T
H

 P
L

AV

SE

123RD AV SE

47
T

H
 P

L

ST

SE

SE
 33

RD S
T

192ND

ST

SE
 2

9 
PL

SE
 N

EW
PO

RT
 W

AY

137TH PL SE

162ND AV SE

SE
 3

3R
D

 C
IR

C

SE

EA
ST

G
AT

E

SE

SE
 4

6T
H

 S
T

13
6T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE
 2

6T
H

 S
T

136TH AV SE

134TH PL

167TH

W    
  L

AKE   
   S

AMM
AM

IS
H

   
   

PK
W

Y  
   

  S
E

AV    SE

SE
 3

1S
T 

ST

SE

SE
 2

3R
D

 P
L

SE

146TH

SE
 N

EW
PO

RT 
W

AY

18
9T

H

SE
 4

5T
H 

PL

150TH

SE
 A

LL
EN

 R
D

139TH AV SE

150TH

PL S
E

145TH AV SE

PL
 S

E

SA
M

M
AM

IS
H

146TH

158TH

156TH

145TH AV SE

157TH

CT

133RD AV SE

SE
 4

2N
D

 C
T

FACTORIA BLVD SE

173RD

SE
 4

2N
D

 P
L

PL

SE 23RD LN

14
0TH WY

(S

E 3
2 N

D 
S

T )

SE

AV

170TH

142ND

AV SE

ST

126TH

158TH AV SE

SE
 2

6T
H

 P
L

142ND

SE

131ST PL

149TH

CT

ST

SE

141ST

AV

176TH

PL

143RD AV SE

AV SE

AV    SE

123RD AV SE

46
TH

SE
 4

5T
H

W
AY

SE

49
TH

SE 22ND PL

SE

SE
 4

3R
D

 S
T

SE
 2

4T
H

 S
T

17
1S

T 
AV

E 
SE

SE
 4

3R
D

21
ST

169TH AVE SE

SE
 2

3R
D 

ST

CT

145TH AV SE

SE

15
9T

H A
V 

SE

144TH AV SE

15
7T

H 
AV

 S
E

SE
 4

2N
D

 S
T

SE
 2

3R
D

 S
T

SE
 4

7T
H

SE
 4

4T
H

SOMERSET

SE
 3

8T
H

 S
T

AV SE

139TH

SE 46
TH

 S
T

L SE

SE
  2

0T
H

PL

SE
 4

9T
H

 S
T

122ND AV SE

SE
 4

1S
T 

PL

EA
S

TG
AT

E

138TH

SE
 4

7T
H 

ST

AV SE

SE
 2

1S
T 

ST

CT SE

190TH

130TH PL SE

SE

PL SE

AV   SE

SE

CT

PL
 S

E

PL

170TH AV SE

153RD

141ST AV SE

SE
 4

0T
H

 P
L

14
6T

H

155TH

PL

151ST A

SE
 4

4T
H

 P
L

SE
 2

8T
H

 S
T

SE
 4

5T
H

 P
L

181ST

167TH

123RD AV SE

SE 46
TH

 P
L

SE
 4

7T
H

 P
L

42
N

D
 P

L

AV SE

PL

126TH AV SE

AV

FACTORIA BLVD

169TH

SE
 4

3R
D

 S
T

SE
 2

7T
H

 S
T

SE

3

2N
D

 S
T

PL

187TH

34
TH

PL. SE

SE

SE
 1

9T
H

 S
T

154TH AV SE

W
AY

140TH AV SE

SE
 2

1S
T 

PL

133RD AV SE

136TH PL

12
3R

D P
L 

SE

SE

RD

SOMERSET BLVD SE

47
TH

 P
L

AV SE

CT SE

SE

172ND AV SE

SE
 4

2N
D

 S
T

150TH

SE
 4

5T
H

 P
L

138TH AV SE

119TH AV SE

160TH CT SE

SOMERSET

SE
 2

0T
H

124TH AV SE

SE
 4

8T
H

 D
R

AV SE

AV SE

RICHARDS RD

155TH AV SE

PL

140TH AV SE

177TH

SE
 4

5T
H

 P
L

16
3R

D PL

CT

176TH

135TH

SE
 2

5T
H

 S
T

16
4 

W
A

Y 
S

E

AV    SE

SE
 4

1S
T

123RD PL SE

25
TH

SE
 4

4T
H

SE

SE
 4

6T
H 

W
AY

SE
 4

5T
H

 S
T

SE

171ST AV SE

PL

139TH AV

139TH AV SE

14
4T

H
 P

L 
S

E

159TH AV SE

AV SE

SE

18
9T

H

PL

46
TH

SE
 4

2N
D

 P
L

SE
 2

0T
H

 P
L SE

SE
 4

3R
D

 P
L

SE 47TH PL

SE
 4

5T
H

 P
L

SE
 4

8T
H

 P
L

PL SE

SE
 4

6T
H 

ST

127TH AVE SE

44
TH

AV SE

172ND

SE

SE
 2

2N
D

189TH

152ND PL SE

43
R

D

AV SE

38
TH

AV SE

188TH

FACTORIA BLVD

14
7T

H

187TH

SE

SE
 4

6T
H 

PL

144TH AV SE

123RD AV SE

SE 47TH PL

155TH

151ST

SE
 3

0T
H

 S
T

41
ST

PL

134TH PL SE

PL SE

146TH PL SE

151ST PL SE

47
TH

SE
 4

7T
H

 S
T

170TH

26TH

SE
 2

1S
T 

PL

PL SE

160TH

SE
 4

8T
H 

CT

SE
 46

TH
 P

L

28
TH

HI
G

H
LA

N
D

 D
R

IV
E 

SE

ST

138TH AV SE

SE
 3

7T
H

AV SE

40
TH

14
7T

H

142 PL SE

SE
 4

2N
D

 S
T

ST

SE

151ST AV SE

SE
 4

7T
H

 S
T

46
TH

166TH PL SE

SE

SE

46TH

16
6T

H A
V 

SE

SE

SE
 4

5T
H

 C
T

SE
 2

4T
H

 S
T

154TH

AV SE

AV SE

164TH AV SE

15
8T

H AV SE

14
2N

D

155TH

SE
 2

3R
D

 P
L

AV

168TH AV

139TH PL SE

131ST

FACTORIA BLVD

SE
 2

3R
D

 S
T

SE
 4

0T
H

 P
L

AV SE

186TH AV SE

SE
 2

2N
D

191ST AVE SE

ST

SE

161ST

31
ST

AV SE

PL SE

SE
 2

5T
H

 S
T

SE

PL

PL

AV SE

PL

AV SE

SE

47
TH

168TH

153RD AV SE

SE
 4

5T
H

 P
L

W
AY

137TH AV SE

AV SE

SE
 2

3R
D

 S
T

AV SE

SE

174TH

SE
 2

1S
T

(S
E 

34
TH

 S
T)

PH
IL

LI
P

S 
H

IL
L 

R
D

42
N

D

AV

151ST AV SE

165TH

191ST

AV

SE 46
TH

 P
L

ST

14
5T

H 
PL

 S
E

154TH

LA
N

D

ERHOLM    C
IR

C
LE

SE
 N

EW
PO

RT
 W

AY

AV SE

AV   SE

154TH PL SE

SE
 2

0T
H

 P
L

PL

PL

SE
 4

4T
H

 S
T

PL

SE
 40

TH

SE
 4

0T
H

 S
T

SE

SE

SE

SE

162ND

SE
 4

1S
T

PL SE

CT

SE
 4

2N
D

 P
L

SE
 4

1S
T 

ST

SE
 4

0T
H

SE
 2

5T
H

 S
T

164TH PL SE

45
TH

SE
 E

as
tg

at
e 

W
ay

S
E

 3
2n

d 
S

t.

S
E

 3
0t

h 
S

t.

142nd Place SE

158th Ave
 SE

150th Ave. SE

Factoria Blvd.

S
E 

36
th

 S
t.

148th Ave. SE

Richards Road

S
E

 2
6t

h 
S

t.

S
E 

28
th

 S
t.

139th Ave. SE

161st A
ve SE

160th Ave
. S

E

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l F
ea

tu
re

s

40
5

90

Richrads Creek

Sunset Creek

Ea
st

 C
re

ek

Richards  Creek

0
1,

00
0

2,
00

0
3,

00
0

4,
00

0
50

0
Fe

et
[

Fi
sh

 B
ea

rin
g 

St
re

am

Li
ke

ly
 F

is
h 

B
ea

rin
g 

S
tre

am

N
on

-F
is

h 
Be

ar
in

g 
St

re
am

Li
ke

ly
 N

on
-F

is
h 

B
ea

rin
g 

S
tre

am

N
ot

 T
yp

ed
 S

tre
am

Sl
op

es
 O

ve
r 4

0%
 a

nd
 >

= 
1,

00
0 

S
q 

Ft

W
et

la
nd

s 
in

 B
el

le
vu

e 
- S

ou
rc

e:
N

W
I

W
et

la
nd

s 
- S

ou
rc

e:
S

en
si

tiv
e 

Ar
ea

s 
N

ot
eb

oo
k



La
ke Sa

m
m

am
is

h

¥§ ¦90 M
ou

nt
ai

ns
to

S
ou

nd
G

re
en

w
ay

M
ou

nt
ai

ns
 to

 S
ou

nd
 G

re
en

w
ay

N
EW

PO
R

T

36
TH

W LK SAMM

EA
S

TG
AT

E

24
TH

26
TH

118TH

I-9
0

ALLEN

148TH

16
1S

T

124TH

32
N

D

120TH

31
S

T

150TH

139TH

128TH

119TH

43
R

D

34
TH

188TH

FACTORIA

37
TH

RICHARDS

132ND

46
TH

29
TH

30
TH

156TH

41
S

T

143RD

177TH

35
TH

16
0TH

154TH

40
TH

I-4
05

SOMERSET

44
TH

168TH

45
TH

28
TH

137TH

140TH

152ND

25
TH

19
TH

142ND

167TH

15
3R

D

127TH

27
TH

146TH

171ST

138TH

170TH

16
4T

H

20
TH

169TH

155TH

38
TH

135TH

H
IG

H
LA

N
D 49

TH

145TH

123RD

133RD

144TH

15
8TH

48
TH

175TH

187TH

184TH

47
TH

129TH

42
N

D

125TH

165TH

151ST

CASCADE

LOPEZ

23
R

D

141ST

182ND

COAL CREEK

21
S

T

185TH

186TH

149TH

121ST

136TH

130TH

PE
R

IM
E

TE
R

134TH

131ST

22
N

D

16
2N

D

172ND

39
TH

LAKE WASHINGTON

LAKEMONT

166TH

163RD

LA
N

D
E

R
H

O
LM

14
7T

H

122ND

173RD

18
1S

T

33
RD

159TH

157TH

126TH

<unknown>

189TH

174TH

176TH

LAKE HEIGHTS

161ST

131ST

42
N

D

39
TH

26
TH

158TH

128TH

44
TH

22
N

D

122ND

45
TH

44
TH

166TH

135TH

22
N

D

147TH

21
S

T

167TH

130TH

44
TH

174TH

140TH

128TH

136TH

38
TH

187TH

41
S

T

44
TH

24
TH

166TH

142ND

164TH

43
R

D

LAKE WASHINGTON

42
N

D

157TH

129TH

172ND

47
TH

45TH

134TH

131ST

21
S

T

152ND20
TH

27
TH

165TH

41
S

T

146TH

149TH

42
N

D

123RD

162ND

39
TH

48
TH

40
TH

23
R

D

44
TH

44
TH

125TH

25
TH

139TH

42
N

D

21
ST

47
TH

23
R

D

167TH

26
TH

49
TH

40
TH

W LK SAMM

16
5TH

141ST

156TH

41ST

44
TH

186TH

42
N

D

135TH

23
R

D

123RD

148TH

151ST

142ND

46
TH

43
R

D

181ST

150TH45
TH

16
4T

H

16
6T

H

14
5T

H

15
9T

H

38
TH

47
TH

122ND

168TH

130TH

26
TH

21
S

T

32
N

D

140TH

174TH

138TH

118TH

142ND

46
TH

168TH

23
RD

153RD

42
N

D

29
TH

30TH

45
TH

27
TH

25
TH

28
TH

47
TH

37
TH

139TH

I-4
05

26
TH

42
N

D

47
TH

45
TH

22
N

D

20
TH

47TH

24
TH

40
TH

41
S

T

140TH

41
S

T

47
TH

46
TH

154TH

22
ND

157TH

144TH

145TH

44
TH

46
TH

149TH

33
R

D

46
TH

40
TH

124TH

14
2N

D

46
TH

150TH

45
TH

44
TH

43
R

D

13
9T

H

29
TH

144TH

27
TH

43RD

155TH

152ND

42
N

D

124TH

157TH

176TH

42
N

D

151ST

23
R

D

40
TH

14
6T

H

28
TH

46
TH

16
1S

T

40
TH

41ST

46
TH

45
TH

147TH

166TH

154TH

122ND

173RD

36
TH

40
TH

47
TH

27
TH

24
TH

156TH

44
TH

42
ND

40
TH

42
N

D

167TH

169TH

121ST

150TH

161ST

43
R

D

46
TH

42
N

D

40
TH

163RD

135TH

155TH

46
TH

47
TH

47
TH

147TH

41
ST

158TH

39
TH

45
TH

43
R

D

29
TH

47TH
138TH

33
R

D

148TH

129TH

135TH

149TH

43
R

D

47
TH

144TH

43
R

D

164TH

42
N

D

48
TH

28
TH

43
R

D

40
TH

142ND

146TH

136TH

153RD

35
TH

23
R

D

162ND

46
TH

170TH

168TH

47
TH

44
TH

120TH

49
TH

45
TH

133RD

157TH

29
TH

152ND

16
2ND

43
RD

46
TH

45
TH

125TH

21
S

T

46
TH

C
O

AL
 C

R
EE

K

146TH

155TH

46
TH

151ST

164TH

129TH

137TH

162ND

25
TH

154TH

17
1ST

45
TH

155TH

135TH

140TH32
N

D

I-4
05

168TH

156TH

170TH

49
TH

155TH

13
8T

H

20
TH

132ND

161ST

25
TH

147TH

35
TH

47
TH

44
TH

143RD

37
TH

150TH

27
TH

15
1S

T

13
6T

H

169TH

165TH

47
TH

129TH

154TH

38
TH

47
TH

172ND

153RD

14
7TH

144TH

I-4
05

35
TH

133RD

44
TH

20
TH

37
TH

132ND

134TH

45
TH

25
TH

30
TH

145TH

EA
ST

G
AT

E

22
ND

45
TH

148TH

36
TH

160TH

42
N

D

38
TH

151ST

140TH

161ST

43
R

D

47
TH

43
RD

49
TH

23
R

D

133RD

146TH

42
N

D

37
TH

162ND

44
TH

14
2N

D

44
TH

142ND

163RD

47
TH

145TH

28
TH

45
TH

122ND

159TH

163RD

163RD

46
TH

39
TH

152ND

149TH

42
N

D

45
TH

31
S

T

48
TH

42ND

23
RD

170TH

45
TH

44
TH

47
TH

48
TH

155TH

137TH

136TH

49
TH

42
N

D

14
1S

T

151ST

43
R

D

21
S

T

14
8T

H

I-9
0

38
TH

17
2N

D

139TH

174TH

14
6T

H
150TH

45
TH

44
TH

44
TH

48
TH

45
TH

40
TH

121ST

45
TH

26
TH

26
TH

48
TH

37
TH

173RD

17
5T

H

25
TH

126TH

153RD

48
TH

14
5T

H

23RD

160TH

121ST

130TH

30
TH

45
TH

158TH

43
R

D

45
TH

25
TH

47
TH

45
TH

21
S

T

161ST

177TH

45
TH

17
1S

T

165TH

41
S

T

154TH

135TH

45
TH

142ND

129TH

39
TH

0
1,

00
0

2,
00

0
3,

00
0

4,
00

0
50

0
Fe

et
[

Pa
rc

el
s

La
ke

 
S

am
m

am
is

h

St
re

et
 C

on
ne

ct
iv

ity
Th

e	
ab
se
nc
e	
of
	a
	re

gu
la
r,	
gr
id
-b
as
ed

	s
tr
ee

t	n
et
w
or
k	
co
nt
rib

ut
es
	to

	o
ut
-o
f-
di
re
cti

on
	tr
av
el
	a
nd

	a
dd

ed
	c
on

ge
sti
on

	in
	

th
e	
co
rr
id
or
.		
Tr
affi

c	
op

er
ati

on
s	
at
	th

e	
fo
llo
w
in
g	
lo
ca
tio

ns
	in
	th

e	
st
ud

y	
ar
ea
	a
re
	c
om

pr
om

is
ed

	b
y	
a	
“o
ne

-w
ay
	in
	a
nd

	
on

e-
w
ay
	o
ut
”	
de

si
gn
:	(
i)	
Bu

si
ne

ss
es
	lo
ca
te
d	
no

rt
h	
of
	S
E	
36

th
	S
tr
ee

t	b
et
w
ee
n	
Ri
ch
ar
ds
	R
oa

d	
an

d	
13

9t
h	
Av

en
ue

	S
E	

pr
im

ar
ily
	u
se
	R
ic
ha
rd
s	
Ro

ad
	to

	a
cc
es
s	
I-9

0	
or
	o
th
er
	a
re
as
.	(
ii)
	S
E	
30

th
	S
tr
ee

t	a
nd

	S
E	
32
nd

	S
tr
ee

t	c
ur
re
nt
ly
	d
ea
d-
en

d,
	

an
d	
bu

si
ne

ss
es
	a
lo
ng

	th
es
e	
tw

o	
ro
ad

s	
m
us
t	g

ai
n	
al
l	a
cc
es
s	
fr
om

	R
ic
ha
rd
s	
Ro

ad
.	(
iii
)	B

us
in
es
se
s	
lo
ca
te
d	
ea
st
	o
f	1

56
th
	

Av
en

ue
	S
E,
	n
or
th
	o
f	E

as
tg
at
e	
W
ay
	h
av
e	
lim

ite
d	
ac
ce
ss
	p
oi
nt
s,
	p
rim

ar
ily
	1
58

th
	A
ve
nu

e	
SE
	o
r	
16

0t
h	
Av

en
ue

	S
E.
	

Th
er
e	
ar
e	
a	
nu

m
be

r	
of
	b
ar
rie

rs
	fo

r	
pe

de
st
ria

ns
	a
nd

	c
yc
lis
ts
	in
	th

e	
co
rr
id
or
;	t
he

	m
os
t	n

ot
ab

le
	o
f	t
he

se
	is
	a
lo
ng

	th
e	
M
ou

nt
ai
ns
	to

	S
ou

nd
	

G
re
en

w
ay
	w
hi
ch
	s
tr
et
ch
es
	a
lo
ng

	1
00

	m
ile
s	
of
	I-
90

	in
	W

as
hi
ng

to
n	
St
at
e	
fr
om

	th
e	
w
at
er
fr
on

t	i
n	
Se
att

le
	to

	C
en

tr
al
	W

as
hi
ng

to
n.
		U

nf
or
tu
na
te
ly
,	

th
e	
M
TS
G
	th

ro
ug

h	
th
e	
Ea
st
ga
te
	a
re
a	
is
	in
ad

eq
ua

te
	a
s	
a	
re
gi
on

al
	fa

ci
lit
y;
	th

e	
G
re
en

w
ay
	e
nd

s	
ab

ru
pt
ly
	a
t	F

ac
to
ria

	B
lv
d	
an

d	
th
e	
ne

xt
	m

ul
ti-

us
e	
tr
ai
l	b
eg
in
s	
1.
9	
m
ile
s	
ea
st
	a
t	t
he

	S
un

se
t	T
ra
il.
		E
ve
n	
ex
pe

rie
nc
ed

	u
se
rs
	a
re
	d
is
sa
tis
fie

d	
w
ith

	th
e	
tr
affi

c	
ex
po

su
re
,	t
he

	b
us
y	
an

d	
w
id
e	

in
te
rs
ec
tio

ns
	th

ey
	m

us
t	n

eg
oti

at
e,
	a
nd

	th
e	
st
ee
p	
te
rr
ai
n.
	



!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!

!!!!!
!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

! ! !

!
!

!

! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

! ! ! !

!

! ! ! !

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

! ! !

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

! ! !

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!!!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

! !

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

! ! ! !

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!
!

!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! !

!
!

! ! !

!
!

!

! ! ! !

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!
!

!!!!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!
!

La
ke

P
ha

nt
om

SE
 41

ST

SE
 2

2N
D

 S
T

SE

156TH AVE SE

W
A

Y

AV

S
E

 4
3

R
D

 S
T

SE
 4

4T
H

 P
L

AV   SE

SE
 3

8T
H

 S
T

19
TH

49
TH

SE
 45

TH
 P

L

47
TH

 P
L

SE

SE
 2

7T
H

SE
 4

2N
D

 S
T

SE

14
6T

H

SE

AV   SE

179TH AV SE

(S
E

 2
6T

H
 S

T)

16
2N

D P
L S

E

SE
 N

EW
PO

R
T 

W
Y

S
E

 4
7

TH
 S

T

14
8T

H

S
E

 4
7

TH
 P

L

AV SE

AV SE

SE
 4

4T
H

 S
T

P
L

S
T

S
E

 2
3

R
D

 P
L

S
E

 2
8

TH
 S

T

163RD

129TH AV SE

SE

140TH

S
E

160TH AVE SE

SE
 2

2N
D

 S
T

DR

AV SE

152ND PL SE

SE
 5

1S
T 

ST

KEY

SE
 5

0T
H

S
E

 2
7

TH
 S

T

ST

SE

SKAGIT KEY

KAMBER RD (140TH PL SE)

SE

17
7T

H A
V 

SE

ST

SE

47
TH

SE 40TH PL

140TH AV SE

16
5T

H P
L 

SE

SE 50
TH

 P
L

SE

158TH PL SE

AV SE

43
RD

P
L

126TH AV SE

14
7T

H A
V S

E

146TH PL SE

156TH AV SE

SE
 N

EW
PO

R
T 

W
AY

S
E

SE 47TH  W
AY

SE
 4

3R
D

 P
L

S
E

 5
1

S
T 

S
T

SE
 N

EW
PO

R
T 

W
Y

SE
 4

7T
H

 P
L

CT

142ND

182ND

PL

SE

SE
 3

6T
H

 S
T

171ST AVE SE

S
E

 2
5

TH
 P

L

ALLEN RD.

SE
 4

3R
D

 S
T

SE

LAKE WASHINGTON BLVD SE

LK WASH BLVD SE

25
TH

150TH AVE SE

SE
 4

9T
H

 S
T

PL SE

SE
 4

5T
H

SE
 4

1
ST

 S
T

C
IE

R
 K

E
Y

135TH PL

130TH AV SE

127T

159TH PL SE

SE

14
7T

H A
V S

E

189TH AV SE

120TH PL SE

44
TH

S
E

 2
9

TH
 S

T

163RD

AV SE

S
T

PL SE

S
E

 2
0

TH

H
EN

R
Y

 B
O

C
K 

R
D

S
E

 4
2

N
D

 P
L

PL

SE
 3

7
TH

 S
T

S
E

 4
7

TH
 P

L

ST

SE

SOMERSET DR SE

SE
 4

5T
H

 P
L

154TH PL

AV SE

S
T

SE

SE

167TH AV SE

138TH PL SE

S
E

 2
1

S
T 

S
T

AV SE

157TH

PL

172ND

SE ALLE
N

PL
 S

E

SE
 4

4T
H

 C
T

CT SE

14
2N

D

SE
 2

3R
D

 S
T

SE

26
TH

(132ND AV SE)

S
E

S
E

 4
7

TH
 P

L

PL

COAL CREEK PKWY SE

AV SE

133RD  AV SE

SE 21
ST P

L

152ND AVE SE

AV

CT SE

PL

S
T

S
E

 4
4

TH
 S

T

ST
W

AY

CT

118TH AVE SE

145TH PL SE

SOMERSET

S
E

 2
1

S
T 

S
T

PL

S
T

AV   SE

136TH PL SE

190TH

47TH

153RD AV SE

SE

AV SE

142ND PL SE

SUCIA KEY

SE
 4

9T
H

 S
T

129TH

SE NEWPORT WAY

SE
 A

LL
EN

 R
D

142 PL SE

SOMERSET DR SE

134TH PL SE

SE

SE
 43

RD
 S

T

SE
 47

TH
 S

T

SE
 4

2N
D

 P
L

46
TH

PL SE

PL

SE
 4

5T
H

SE
 3

9T
H

 P
L

162ND AV SE

SE

S

E
 2

6
TH

 PL

SE
 4

4T
H

 C
T

180TH AVE SE

S
E

 4
5

TH
 P

L

AV

S
E

 2
9

TH

S
E

 2
0

TH
 S

T

140TH AV SE

SE
 4

2N
D

S
E

 1
9

TH
 S

T

16
4 W

AY S
E

SE
 3

8T
H

 P
L

SE
 4

3R
D

W
A

Y

185TH PL SE

153RD AVE SE

S
E

 4
2

N
D

 S
T

170TH PL SE

45
TH

SE
 4

7T
H

PL SE

168TH AV SE

AV SE

162ND  PL SE

16
2N

D

140TH

146TH

130TH AVE SE

S
T

SE
 4

4T
H

 S
T

AV SE

SE

AV SE

161ST

165TH AVE SE

SE
 4

4T
H

 S
T

S
E

 4
1

S
T 

S
T

PL SE

134TH

SE
 4

9T
H

 S
T

SE

133RD

135TH AV SE

133RD AV SE

SE
 2

9T
H

139TH AV SE

156TH PL SE

ST

PL

S
E

 3
0

TH
 S

T

SE

S
T

PL SE

180TH AV

AV SE

SOMERSET

P
L

16
3R

D

BL
VD

    
 S

E

S
E

 4
2

N
D

 P
L

LOPEZ

S
E

 2
7

TH
 S

T

154TH AVE SE

DR

17
2N

D 
CT

SE
 4

1S
T 

ST

147TH PL

ST

ST

S
E

 4
4

TH
 P

L

158TH

46
TH

 S
T

SOMERSET    B
LVD   SE

AV SE

19
0T

H

17
3R

D

SE
 4

2N
D

 S
T

135TH AV SE

S
E

 3
1

S
T 

S
T

17
5T

H
 P

L 
SE

S
E

 4
2

N
D

 S
T

SE 41
ST

   129TH PL SE

149TH PL SE
148TH AV SE

SE

SE
 4

8T
H

 D
R

SE
 4

4T
H

 S
T

COAL          CREEK          PKWY          SE

SE
 4

3R
D

 S
T

150TH

187TH

AV

155TH AVE SE

153RD AV SE

164TH AV SE

SE
 2

2N
D

 S
T

134TH AV SE

130th PL SE

161ST

SOMERSET DR SE

KEY

S
E

 2
2

N
D

 S
T

147TH

S
E

 4
4

TH

S
E

 3
1

S
T 

S
T

SE
 4

5T
H

121ST

W
ES

T 
LA

KE

138TH

144TH

SE
 22

ND
 S

T

169TH PL SE

139TH AV SE

161ST AV SE

SE
 4

7T
H

 S
T

129TH PL SE

S
E

 4
3

R
D

 S
T

40
TH

 P
L

163RD  PL SE

S
E

PL SE

181ST

151ST PL SE

SE
 4

2N
D

 S
T

SE
 1

9T
H

 P
L

S
T

SE
 4

2N
D

 S
T

SE
   

A
LL

EN
   

R
D

PL

AV SE

S
E

 2
3

R
D

 S
T

170TH

PL SE

S
E

 2
5

TH
 S

T

148TH AVE SE

SE
 5

0T
H

 S
T

147TH

COAL CREEK PKWY SE
178TH

RICHARDS RD

CT

SE
 45

TH
 P

L

PL S
E

S
E

 3
2

N
D

 S
T

PL SE

CT

142ND PL SE

AV   SE
NE

W
PO

R
T

PL SE

122ND

SE

AV SE

163RD

AV  SE

PL

BL
VD

153RD AV SE

KEY

SE
 4

8T
H

 C
T

SE

W
AY

SO
M

E
RS

E
T

C
T

174TH PL SE

145TH AV SE

PL S
E

S
E

 4
5

TH
 S

T

156TH PL SE

SE 44TH

SE

143RD

SE
 4

2N
D

 S
T

44
TH

 C
T

39
TH

C
T

165TH CT SE

SE
 E

A
ST

G
AT

E 
W

AY

163RD

SE
 4

3R
D

 P
L

SE

S
E

 4
6

TH
 W

A
Y

S
E

 4
7

TH
 P

L

PL

SE

RICHARDS ROAD

(132ND AVE SE)

169TH AVE SE

SE
43

RD

SE
 5

0T
H

 S
T

PL

S
E

 4
7

TH

SE
 4

5T
H

 P
L

KE
Y

42
ND

S
E

145TH AV SE

148TH

152ND LN SE

CT SE

SE

182ND AV SE

SE
 1

9T
H

123RD AVE SE

121ST AV SE

145TH

166TH AVE

SE
 4

5T
H

 S
T

SE

SE

159TH AV

159TH AV SE

42
N

D

140TH AV SE

45
TH

167TH AV SE

S
E

S
E

 2
4

TH
 S

T

PL

SE
 3

9T
H

 S
T

15
1S

T

SE

149TH

139TH PL SE

PH
IL

LI
PS

 H
IL

L 
R

D
  (

SE
 3

5T
H 

PL
)

S
E

 1
9

TH
 S

T

46
TH

ST

S
E

 3
9

TH
 S

T

PL

157TH

HIGHLAND DRIVE SE

KAMBER RD (1
39TH PL SE)

SE

SE
 4

3R
D

 S
T

PL

PL SE

WEST LAKE SAMMAMISH PKWY

S
E

 2
5

TH
 S

T

174TH AV SE

168TH AV SE

S
E

 4
7

TH
 S

T

PL   SE

S
E

 3
3

R
D

 P
L

43
R

D

ST

ST

128TH AV SE

SE
 4

5T
H

 S
T

PL S
E

SE
 4

0T
H

S
E

 2
3

R
D

 S
T

20
TH

 S
T

C
TS
E

SE
 4

2N
D

 S
T

140TH AV 

158TH

49
TH

128TH AV SE

136TH AV SE

PL SE

S
E

 4
4

TH

141ST CT SE

16
4T

H P
L S

E
AV

PL

151ST

120TH AV SE

165TH PL SE

SE

137TH AV SE

S
E

 4
8

TH
 D

R

LAKE HEIGHTS

S
E

 2
8

TH
 P

L

S
E

AV

AV SE

SE

PL

ST

PL SE

117TH AV SE

AV

124TH AV SE

S
E

 4
8

TH
 D

R

161ST AV SE

SE
 3

7T
H

 S
T

S
E

 4
7

TH
 P

L

189TH

166TH AV SE

PL SE

SE
 4

7T
H

 P
L

SE

SE
 4

8T
H

44
TH

42
N

D

138TH AV SE

SE
 4

3R
D

 P
L

S
E

 3
5

TH
 S

T

13
9T

H

S
E

S
E

 N
E

W
P

O
R

T 
W

A
Y

S
E

 3
5

TH
 S

T

SE
 39

TH
 S

T

SE 20
TH

 P
L

S
E

 2
8

TH
 S

T

PL

128TH A

SE

CI
RC

LE

SE

SE
 E

A
ST

G
AT

E

165TH PL SE

171ST AVE SE

S
E

 2
8

TH

170TH

162ND

29
TH

45
TH

  S
T

AV   SE

SE

127TH

RICHARDS ROAD

(132ND AVE SE)

(132ND AVE SE)

S
E

 4
5

TH
 P

L

148TH AV SE

S
E

 2
7

TH
 S

T

152ND

CT

131ST PL SE

SE

45
TH

 C
T

SE
 A

LL
EN

 R
D

S
E

121ST

FACTORIA BLVD

172ND AV SE

156TH AV SE

AV    SE

158TH AV SE

167TH AV SE

S
E

 3
2

N
D

 S
T

(118TH AV SE)

165TH AV SE

SE

PK
W

Y

S
E

 4
3

RD
 C

T

153RD AV SE

SE
 44

TH
 P

L

SE
 3

8T
H

 S
T

AV SE

146TH AV SE

CT

177TH AVE SE

SE
 4

6
TH

 S
T

PL SE

152ND

140TH

SE
 4

2N
D

 P
L

SE
 4

7T
H

 P
L

155TH

AV SE

K
E

Y

165TH AV SE

142ND AV SE

SE
 4

9 
PL

S
E

 2
1

S
T 

P
L

47
TH

 P
L

19
1S

T

45
TH

SE
 2

6T
H

 S
T

SE

P
L 

S
E

S
E

 4
6

TH

122ND AV SE

SE
 3

7T
H

SE
 4

7T
H

 S
T

SE
 4

1S
T 

ST

139TH AV SE

S
E

 2
7

TH
 S

T

145TH AV

134TH AVE SE

LA
N

D
E

R
H

O
LM

SE
 A

LL
EN

 R
D

CASCADE

130TH AV SE130TH AV SE

145TH AV SE

46
TH

  S
T

S
E

 4
2

N
D

AV SE

128TH AV SE

SE
 4

5T
H

 S
T

173RD AV

146TH AV SE

131ST

133RD AV SE

LN

182ND PL SE

S
E

 4
7

TH

48
TH

SE 49TH PL

141ST PL

SE N
EW

PORT W
Y

PL

CT

19
1S

T

S
E

 4
3

R
D

 P
L

SE

45
TH

S
E

18
7T

H  A
V

CT
 S

E

SE

186TH PL

125TH AV SE

174TH

SE

PL

S
E

 4
9

TH
 S

T

AV SE

145TH PL SE

SE

AV SE

ST

SE

166TH

155TH PL SE

AV SE

ST

SOMERSET PL

156TH AV SE

136TH PL SE

125TH AV SE

155TH

S
E

 4
6

TH
 S

T

132ND AV SE

PL S
E

149TH

ST

SE

14
6T

H
 P

L 
S

E

S
E

 4
4

TH
 W

A
Y

K
A

M
B

E
R

 R
D

AV SE

119TH AV SE

S
E

S
E

 4
8

TH
 P

L

SE
 2

6T
H

 S
T

124TH AV SE

SE 51
ST P

L

SE
 47

TH
 C

T

SE 51ST ST

166TH AV SE

134TH PL SE

151ST AV SE

AV SE

134TH AV SE

AV  SE

145TH

SE
 4

5T
H

 C
T

168TH AV SE

S
E

  4
6T

H

S
E

 4
1

S
T 

S
T

S
E

   
S

E
 3

8T
H

 P
L

S
E

 5
0

TH

S
E

 4
5

TH
 S

T

PL SE

135TH PL SE

ST

S
E

 2
0

TH
 S

T

S
E

 4
8

TH
 S

T

135TH

S
E

 2
0

TH

SE

W      
LAKE      

SAMM

SE

129TH AV SE

127TH

SE
 46

TH

163RD

147TH PL SE

SE 44
TH

S
E

 4
7

TH
 P

L

IP
 K

EY

38
TH

163RD AV SE

171ST AVE SE

S
E

 2
3

R
D

 P
L

169TH PL SE

S
E

 4
5

TH
 P

L

PL SE

136TH PL SE

S
E

 4
3

R
D

 S
T

PL

(118TH AV SE)

S
E

 3
7

TH
 S

T

SE
 4

6
TH

S
E

  4
6T

H

130th PL SE

135TH AV SE

132ND AV SE

122ND

118TH AV SE

118TH

SE
 23

RD
 S

T

S
E

 3
8

TH
 S

T

136TH

SE

SE
 4

5T
H

 S
T

S
T

ST

ST

AV SE

P
L

SE

46
TH

26
TH

AV

149TH AV SE

P
L

SE

SE

SE
 29

TH

CT

171ST AV SE

138TH PL SE

SE
 4

0T
H

 S
T

152ND AV SE

142ND AV SE

PL

S
E

 3
0

TH
 S

T

17
2N

D P
L 

SE

136TH

SE
 4

2N
D

 S
T

WEST LAKE SAMMAMISH PKWY SE

SE 38
TH

S
T

167TH AV SE

121ST

SE

SE
 4

4
TH

 P
L

AV

SE

123RD AV SE

47
T

H
 P

L

ST

SE

SE 33
RD S

T

S
E

 4
9

TH
 P

L

ST

S
E

 2
9

 P
L

SE
 N

EW
PO

RT 
W

AY

137TH PL SE

162ND AV SE

KEY

S
E 

33
R

D
 C

IR
C

SE

EA
ST

G
AT

E

SE

SE
 4

6T
H

 S
T

50
TH

13
6T

H
 P

L 
SE

S
E

 2
6

TH
 S

T

136TH AV SE

134TH PL

167TH

W
    

  L

AKE     
  S

AMM
AM

I S
H 

   
  P

K
W

Y 
   

  S
E

AV    SE

S
E

 3
1

S
T 

S
T

S
E

SE
 2

3R
D

 P
L

SE

146TH

SE
 N

EW
PO

RT 
W

AY

18
9T

H

SE
 45

TH
 P

L

150TH

SE
 A

LL
EN

 R
D

139TH AV SE

SE

150TH

PL S
E

145TH AV SE

PL
 S

E

SA
MM

AM
IS

H

146TH

158TH

156TH

145TH AV SE

157TH

E
 4

8
TH

 S
T

C
T

133RD AV SE

S
E

 4
2

N
D

 C
T

FACTORIA BLVD SE

173RD

S
E

 4
2

N
D

 P
L

P
L

SE 23RD LN

140TH WY

(S

E 3
2N

D
 S

T
)

SE
 5

0T
H

 S
T

AV

170TH

142ND

AV SE

ST

126TH

158TH AV SE

S
E

 2
6

TH
 P

L

142ND

SE

131ST PL

149TH

CT

ST

AV  SE

SE

141ST

ST

AV

176TH

PL

143RD AV SE

AV SE

AV    SE

123RD AV SE

46
TH

SE
 4

5T
H

W
AY

SE

SE
 5

0T
H

 S
T

49
TH

SE 22ND PL

SE

127TH PL SE

SE
 4

8 
C

T

S
E

 2
4

TH
 S

T

171
ST

 A
V

E 
S

E

21
S

T

169TH AVE SE

SE
 23

RD
 S

T

CT

145TH AV SE

SE

15
9T

H A
V 

SE

144TH AV SE

15
7T

H
 A

V 
SE

S
E

 4
2

N
D

 S
T

S
E

 2
3

R
D

 S
T

SE
 4

7T
H

SE
 4

4T
H

SOMERSET

119TH AV SE

S
E

 3
8

TH
 S

T

AV SE

139TH

SE 46
TH

 S
T

9TH PL SE

S
E

  2
0T

H

PL

S
E

 4
9

TH
 S

T

E
 4

8
TH

 S
T

122ND AV SE

SE
 4

1
S

T 
P

L

E
AS

TG
A

TE

138TH

SE
 47

TH
 S

T

AV SE

S
E

 2
1

S
T 

S
T

S
E

 4
0

TH
 S

T

190TH

130TH PL SE

PL SE

AV   SE

S
E

CT

PL
 S

E

PL

170TH AV SE

153RD

141ST AV SE

S
E

 4
0

TH
 P

L

14
6T

H

155TH

PL

151ST AVE SE

S
E

 4
4

TH
 P

L

S
E

 2
8

TH
 S

T

ST

SE
 4

5T
H

 P
L

181ST

167TH

123RD AV SE

SE 46
TH

 P
L

SE
 4

7T
H

 P
L

42
ND

 P
L

AV SE

PL

126TH AV SE

FACTORIA BLVD

169TH

SE
 4

3R
D

 S
T

S
E

 2
7

TH
 S

T

SE

3
2N

D
 S

T

ST

187TH

SE
 4

7T
H

 S
T

34
TH

S
E

 5
0

TH
 S

T

PL. SE

S
E

 1
9

TH
 S

T

154TH AV SE

140TH AV SE

SE
 21

ST
 P

L

133RD AV SE

136TH PL SE

12
3R

D P
L S

E

SE 50
TH

 P
L

SE

RD

SOMERSET BLVD SE

47
TH

 P
L

AV SE

CT SE

SE

172ND AV SE

S
E

 4
2

N
D

 S
T

150TH

SE
 4

5T
H

 P
L

138TH AV SE

119TH AV SE

160TH CT SE

SOMERSET

SE
 2

0T
H

124TH AV SE

S
E

 4
8

TH
 D

R

AV SE

AV SE

RICHARDS RD

155TH AV SE

PL

140TH AV SE

177TH

SE
 4

5T
H

 P
L

16
3R

D P
L

C
T

176TH

135TH

SE
 45

TH
 P

L

S
E

 2
5

TH
 S

T

16
4 

W
AY

 S
E

AV    SE

S
E

 4
1

S
T

123RD PL SE

25
TH

S
E

 4
4

TH

47
TH

 P
L

SE

SE
 4

6T
H

 W
AY

SE
 4

5T
H

 S
T

S
E

171ST AV SE

P
L

139TH AV

139TH AV SE

14
4T

H
 P

L 
S

E

LAKE HEIGHTS

159TH AV SE

AV SE

SE
 4

6T
H

 S
T

SE

18
9T

H

P
L

46
TH

S
E

 4
2

ND
 P

L

SE
 2

0T
H

 P
L SE

SE
 4

3R
D

 P
L

SE 47TH PL

SE
 4

6T
H

 S
T

SE
 4

5T
H

 P
L

S
E 

48
T

H
 P

L

PL SE

SE
 4

6T
H

 S
T

127TH AVE SE

AV SE

172ND

SE

SE 
22

N
D

189TH

152ND PL SE

43
RD

AV SE

38
TH

AV SE

188TH

173RD PL

FACTORIA BLVD

147TH

187TH

SE

SE
 46

TH
 P

L

144TH AV SE

123RD AV SE

S
T

SE 47TH PL

155TH
151ST

S
E 

30
TH

 S
T

41
ST

PL

134TH PL SE

122ND

PL SE

146TH PL SE

141ST

151ST PL SE

47
TH

S
E

 4
7

TH
 S

T

170TH

26TH

S
E

 2
1

S
T 

P
L

PL SE

160TH

S
E

 4
8T

H
 C

T

SE 46
TH

 P
L

28
TH

HI
G

H
LA

ND
 D

R
IV

E 
SE

S
T

138TH AV SE

S
E

 3
7

TH

AV SE

40
TH

147TH

142 PL SE

S
E

 4
2

N
D

 S
T

ST

SE

151ST AV SE

R
T

SE
 4

7T
H

 S
T

46TH

166TH PL SE

S
E

SE

46TH

16
6T

H A
V S

E

SE

SE
 4

5T
H

 C
T

S
E

 2
4

TH
 S

T

154TH

AV SE

AV SE

164TH AV SE

158TH AV SE

14
2N

D

155TH

S
E

 2
3

R
D

 P
L

168TH AV

139TH PL SE

131ST

FACTORIA BLVD

S
E

 2
3

R
D

 S
T

S
E 

40
TH

 P
L

AV SE

186TH AV SE

SE
 2

2N
D

S
T

SE

161ST

31
ST

AV SE

PL SE

S
E

 2
5

TH
 S

T

PL

PL

AV SE

VASHON

PL

AV SE

SE

47
TH

168TH

153RD AV SE

S
E

 4
5

TH
 P

L

W
A

Y

12 2ND A V S
E

137TH AV SE

AV SE

S
E

 2
3

R
D

 S
T

AV SE

S
E

174TH

S
E

 2
1

S
T

(S
E

 3
4T

H
 S

T)

P
H

IL
LI

PS
 H

IL
L 

R
D

42
N

D

AV

151ST AV SE

165TH

AV

SE 46
TH

 P
L

ST

P
L

14
5T

H P
L 

SE

154TH

LA
N

DE

RHOLM    CIRC
LE

KEY

SE
 N

EW
PO

RT 
W

AY

AV SE

118TH

SE
 49

TH

AV   SE

154TH PL SE

S
E

 2
0

TH
 P

L

PL

P
L

SE
 4

4T
H

 S
T

PL

SE
 40

TH

S
E

 4
0

TH
 S

T

SE

SE
157TH AV SE

SE

SE

162ND

16

4TH AVE SE

SE
 4

1S
T

PL SE

CT

S
E

 4
2

N
D

 P
L

S
E

 4
1

S
T 

S
T

SE
 4

9T
H

 P
L

SE
 4

0T
H

S
E

 2
5

TH
 S

T

164TH PL SE

45
TH

¥§ ¦90

¥§ ¦90

0
1,

00
0

2,
00

0
3,

00
0

4,
00

0
50

0
Fe

et
[

B
ik

e 
N

et
w

or
k 

Bi
cy

cl
e 

La
ne

Bi
cy

cl
e 

R
ou

te

O
ff-

S
tre

et
 P

at
h

SE
 E

as
tg

at
e 

W
ay

S
E

 3
2n

d 
S

t.

S
E

 3
0t

h 
S

t.

142nd Place SE

158th Ave
 SE

150th Ave. SE

Factoria Blvd.

S
E 

36
th

 S
t.

148th Ave. SE

Richards Road

S
E

 2
6t

h 
S

t.

S
E 

28
th

 S
t.

139th Ave. SE

161st A
ve SE

160th Ave
. S

E

B
ic

yc
le

 N
et

w
or

k

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!

!!!!!
!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

! ! !

!
!

!

! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

! ! ! !

!

! ! ! !

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

! ! !

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

! ! !

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!!!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

! !

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

! ! ! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!
!

!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! !

!
!

! ! !

!
!

!

! ! ! !

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!
!

!!!!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

La
ke

¥§ ¦90

¥§ ¦90

0
1,

00
0

2,
00

0
3,

00
0

4,
00

0
50

0
Fe

et
[

Si
de

w
al

ks

Tr
ai

ls

SE
 E

as
tg

at
e 

W
ay

S
E

 3
2n

d 
S

t.

S
E

 3
0t

h 
S

t.

S
E

 2
6t

h 
S

t.

Richards Road

S
E 

28
th

 S
t.

Factoria Blvd.

139th Ave. SE

142nd Place SE

158th Ave
 SE

160th Ave
. S

E

161st A
ve SE

148th Ave. SE

Si
de

w
al

ks
 &

 T
ra

ils

O
n	
Fe
br
ua
ry
	1
7,
	2
00

9	
th
e	
Be

lle
vu
e	
Ci
ty
	C
ou

nc
il	
ap

pr
ov
ed

	a
s	
pa

rt
	o
f	i
ts
	a
nn

ua
l	C

om
pr
eh

en
si
ve
	P
la
n	
am

en
dm

en
t	m

aj
or
	

ch
an

ge
s	
fo
r	
Be

lle
vu
e’
s	
ne

tw
or
k	
of
	p
ed

es
tr
ia
n	
an

d	
bi
cy
cl
e	
pa

th
s.
		A

t	p
re
se
nt
,	t
he

re
	a
re
	.1
	m

ile
s	
of
	e
xi
sti
ng

	b
ik
e	
la
ne

	
fa
ci
liti

es
	in
	th

e	
pr
im

ar
y	
st
ud

y	
ar
ea
.		
Be

lle
vu
e’
s	
Pe

de
st
ria

n	
an

d	
Bi
cy
cl
e	
Pl
an

	p
ro
po

se
s	
an

	a
dd

iti
on

al
	3
.1
	m

ile
s	
of
	b
ik
e	

la
ne

	fa
ci
liti

es
	in
	th

e	
pr
im

ar
y	
st
ud

y	
ar
ea
.		
Ad

di
tio

na
lly
,	c
yc
lis
ts
	h
av
e	
ex
pr
es
se
d	
co
nc
er
n	
ov
er
	a
cc
es
s	
an

d	
sa
fe
ty
	a
cr
os
s	

Fa
ct
or
ia
	B
ou

le
va
rd
	a
t	S

E	
36

	S
tr
ee

t.
		A

	c
ur
re
nt
	is
su
e	
fo
r	
bi
cy
cl
is
ts
	tr
av
el
in
g	
w
es
tb
ou

nd
	o
n	
SE
	3
6	
St
re
et
	is
	th

at
	th

ey
	

ha
ve
	d
iffi

cu
lty

	m
an

eu
ve
rin

g	
to
	th

e	
I-9

0	
tr
ai
l	o
n	
th
e	
w
es
t	s
id
e	
of
	F
ac
to
ria

	B
ou

le
va
rd
.		
In
te
rs
ec
tio

n	
cr
os
si
ng

	is
su
es
	fo

r	
pe

de
st
ria

ns
	a
nd

	c
yc
lis
ts
	a
re
	a
ls
o	
ex
pe

rie
nc
ed

	a
t	E

as
tg
at
e	
W
ay
	/
	1
50

th
	A
ve
nu

e	
SE
.	

O
n	
Fe
br
ua
ry
	1
7,
	2
00

9	
th
e	
Be

lle
vu
e	
Ci
ty
	C
ou

nc
il	
ap

pr
ov
ed

	a
s	
pa

rt
	o
f	i
ts
	a
nn

ua
l	C

om
pr
eh

en
si
ve
	P
la
n	

am
en

dm
en

t	m
aj
or
	c
ha
ng
es
	fo

r	
Be

lle
vu
e’
s	
ne

tw
or
k	
of
	p
ed

es
tr
ia
n	
an

d	
bi
cy
cl
e	
pa

th
s.
		A

t	p
re
se
nt
,	t
he

re
	a
re
	

11
.5
	m

ile
s	
of
	e
xi
sti
ng

	s
id
ew

al
k	
fa
ci
liti

es
	in
	th

e	
pr
im

ar
y	
st
ud

y	
ar
ea
	a
nd

	3
	m

ile
s	
in
	th

e	
se
co
nd

ar
y	
st
ud

y	
ar
ea
.		

Be
lle
vu
e’
s	
Pe

de
st
ria

n	
an

d	
Bi
cy
cl
e	
Pl
an

	p
ro
po

se
s	
an

	a
dd

iti
on

al
	1
.6
	m

ile
s	
of
	s
id
ew

al
k	
fa
ci
liti

es
	in
	th

e	
pr
im

ar
y	

st
ud

y 
ar

ea
.  



La
ke

    
 S

am
m

am
is

h

19700
 
 
21100

3700
 
 
3300

3200
 
 
2900

41200
 
 
32800

12300
 
 
11200

15400
 
 
14700

15500
 
 
13100

19300
 
 
17300

6000
 
 
5600

12100
 
 
11500

27100
 
 
27800

7000
 
 

7100

.

Tr
af

fic
 C

ou
nt

 L
oc

at
io

ns

!
!

C
ity

 L
im

its
P

rim
ar

y 
S

tu
dy

 A
re

a

K
ey

1 
in

ch
 =

 2
,0

00
 fe

et

20
00

20
02

20
04

20
06

20
08

A
nn

ua
l A

ve
ra

ge
 W

ee
kd

ay
 T

ra
ffi

c

¥§ ¦90

La
ke

    
 S

am
m

am
is

h

¥§ ¦90

:

Bu
s 

St
op

 
(7

5 
bo

ar
di

ng
s/

al
ig

ht
in

gs
)

!
!

!

C
ity

 L
im

its
Bu

s 
R

ou
te

Pr
im

ar
y 

St
ud

y 
Ar

ea

K
ey

1 
in

ch
 =

 2
,0

00
 fe

et

B
us

 A
ct

iv
ity

Pr
ox
im

ity
	to

	a
n	
ex
pa

nd
in
g	
co
lle
ge
,	i
nc
re
as
in
g	
em

pl
oy
m
en

t,	
an

d	
a	
m
aj
or
	tr
an
si
t	f
ac
ili
ty
	h
av
e	
ge
ne

ra
te
d	
si
gn
ifi
ca
nt
	g
ai
ns
	in
	tr
an
si
t	r
id
er
sh
ip
	in
	th

e	
co
rr
id
or
.		
Av

er
ag
e	
w
ee
kd
ay
	tr
an
si
t	r
id
er
sh
ip
	is
	u
p	
26
3%

	fr
om

	2
,4
00

	in
	2
00

0	
to
	8
,7
00

	in
	2
00

8.
		N

ot
	s
ur
pr
is
in
gl
y,
	th

e	
bu

lk
	o
f	r
id
er
sh
ip
	a
cti

vi
ty
	(4

4%
)	

oc
cu
rs
	a
t	t
he

	5
	s
to
ry
	E
as
tg
at
e	
P&

R	
fa
ci
lit
y.
		W

hi
le
	ri
de

rs
hi
p	
ha
s	
gr
ow

n	
qu

ic
kl
y,
	it
	is
	s
til
l	v
er
y	
di
ffi
cu
lt	
to
	o
pe

ra
te
	e
ffi
ci
en

t	a
nd

	d
ire

ct
	tr
an
si
t	s
er
vi
ce
s	
to
	

th
e	
ar
ra
y	
of
	d
es
tin

ati
on

s	
in
	th

e	
Ea
st
ga
te
	a
re
a	
du

e	
to
	th

e	
fr
ee
w
ay
	a
nd

	th
e	
lim

ite
d	
st
re
et
	n
et
w
or
k.
	

Fr
om

	2
00

0	
to
	2
00

8,
	A
nn

ua
l	A

ve
ra
ge
	W

ee
kd
ay
	T
ra
ffi
c	
(A
AW

T)
	a
t	t
he

	1
1	
lo
ca
tio

ns
	m

on
ito

re
d	
in
	th

e	
st
ud

y	
ar
ea
	d
ec
re
as
ed

	fr
om

	
19
2,
30

0	
to
	1
80

,0
00

,	a
	6
	p
er
ce
nt
	re

du
cti

on
.		
Th

e	
an
nu

al
	c
ou

nt
	fl
uc
tu
ati

on
s	
du

rin
g	
th
is
	ti
m
e-
pe

rio
d	
re
m
ai
n	
w
ith

in
	th

is
	ra

ng
e.
		W

hi
le
	

A
AW

T	
le
ve
ls
	h
av
e	
dr
op

pe
d,
	m

an
y	
pe

op
le
	in
	th

e	
co
rr
id
or
	e
xp
re
ss
	c
on

ce
rn
	o
ve
r	
co
ng
es
tio

n	
le
ve
ls
	in
	th

e	
co
rr
id
or
.	



La
ke

P
ha

nt
om

¥§ ¦90

0
1,

00
0

2,
00

0
3,

00
0

4,
00

0
50

0
Fe

et
[

A
rt

er
ia

l C
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

n
M

aj
or

M
in

or

C
ol

le
ct

or

SE
 E

as
tg

at
e 

W
ay

S
E

 3
2n

d 
S

t.

S
E

 3
0t

h 
S

t.

S
E

 2
6t

h 
S

t.

Richards Road

SE
 2

8t
h 

S
t.

Factoria Blvd.

139th Ave. SE

142nd Place SE

158th Ave
 SE

160th Ave
. S

E

161st A
ve SE

148th Ave. SE

S
E 

36
th

 S
t.

156th Ave
 SE

SE
 N

ew
po

rt 
W

ay

A
rt

er
ia

l C
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

n

Pr
im

ar
y

St
ud

y
A

re
a

U
ni

nc
or

po
ra

te
d

K
in

g
C

ou
nt

y
(E

as
tg

at
e

Po
te

nt
ia

lA
nn

ex
at

io
n

A
re

a)

FACTORIABLVDSE

S
E

E
A

S
TG

A
TE

W
A

Y

148THAVESE

S
E

24
TH

S
T

¥§ ¦40
5

¥§ ¦90
E

as
tg

at
e

P
ar

k

R
ob

in
sw

oo
d

C
om

m
un

ity
P

ar
k

C
oa

lC
re

ek
P

ar
k

W
O

O
D

R
ID

G
E

N
EW

PO
R

T

SO
M

ER
SE

T

W
ES

T
LA

K
E

H
IL

LS

FA
C

TO
R

IA

SA
M

M
A

M
IS

H
/E

A
ST

LA
K

E
H

IL
LS

EA
ST

G
AT

E/
C

O
U

G
A

R
M

O
U

N
TA

IN

EA
ST

G
AT

E/
C

O
U

G
A

R
M

O
U

N
TA

IN

Su
rr

ou
nd

in
g 

N
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

ds
H

ea
lth

y,
	v

ib
ra

nt
	n

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
ds

	a
re

	t
he

	C
ity

	o
f	

Be
lle

vu
e’

s	
gr

ea
te

st
	a

ss
et

.	
e

althy,	
vi

brant	n
e

ighborhoods	a
r

e	t
h

e	C
i

ty
	

o
f

	
Be

llevue’s	g
r

eatest	a
s

set.	

Ar
te
ria

l	f
un

cti
on

al
	c
la
ss
ifi
ca
tio

n	
is
	th

e	
di
vi
si
on

	o
f	a

	ro
ad

	s
ys
te
m
	in
to
	a
	n
um

be
r	
of
	c
at
eg
or
ie
s	
or
	g
ro
up

s	
ac
co
rd
in
g	
to
	th

e	
“f
un

cti
on

”	
ea
ch
	ro

ad
	s
er
ve
s	
or
	is
	in
te
nd

ed
	to

	s
er
ve
.	T
he

	m
ai
n	
fu
nc
tio

ns
	

fo
r	
an
y	
ro
ad

	a
re
	1
)	t
o	
pr
ov
id
e	
m
ob

ili
ty
,	o

r	
th
e	
m
ov
em

en
t	o

f	t
ra
ffi
c	
an

d,
	2
)	t
o	
pr
ov
id
e	
ac
ce
ss
	to

	a
dj
ac
en

t	l
an

d	
us
es
.	T
he

	d
eg
re
e	
to
	w
hi
ch
	th

e	
ro
ad

	s
er
ve
s	
m
ov
em

en
t	o

f	t
ra
ffi
c	
or
	a
cc
es
s	
to
	

ad
ja
ce
nt
	la
nd

	u
se
s	
is
	th

e	
ba

si
s	
fo
r	
its
	fu

nc
tio

na
l	c
la
ss
ifi
ca
tio

n.
		T
he

re
	a
re
	th

re
e	
ty
pe

s	
of
	a
rt
er
ia
l	r
oa

dw
ay
s:
	(i
)	P

rin
ci
pa

l	A
rt
er
ia
ls
	p
ro
vi
de

	d
ire

ct
	ro

ut
es
	fo

r	
lo
ng
-d
is
ta
nc
e	
tr
av
el
	w
ith

in
	th

e	
re
gi
on

,	
an

d	
co
nn

ec
t	f
re
ew

ay
	in
te
rc
ha
ng
es
	to

	m
aj
or
	c
on

ce
nt
ra
tio

ns
	o
f	c
om

m
er
ci
al
	a
cti

vi
ty
.		
(ii
)	M

in
or
	A
rt
er
ia
ls
	c
on

ne
ct
	p
rin

ci
pa

l	a
rt
er
ia
ls
	to

	m
aj
or
	c
om

m
er
ci
al
	a
nd

	re
si
de

nti
al
	a
re
as
.		
(ii
i)	
Co

lle
ct
or
	

Ar
te
ria

l	a
re
	tw

o	
or
	th

re
e-
la
ne

	s
tr
ee

ts
	w
hi
ch
	c
ar
ry
	li
tt
le
	th

ro
ug

h	
tr
affi

c,
	b
ut
	c
ol
le
ct
	a
nd

	d
is
tr
ib
ut
e	
tr
affi

c	
w
ith

in
	a
	n
ei
gh
bo

rh
oo

d	
an

d	
pr
ov
id
e	
th
e	
co
nn

ec
tio

n	
to
	m

in
or
	o
r	
pr
in
ci
pa

l	a
rt
er
ia
ls
.		



1 | P a g e  
 

Public Involvement Plan 
(Approved by Council, 2-1-2010) 
 
Public Involvement Plan Objectives 
 
The Eastgate I-90 Land Use and Transportation Project includes a robust public involvement 
plan.  This plan will help fulfill the following objectives: 
 

 Include and consider a broad range of ideas and perspectives in the development and 
evaluation of alternatives; 

 Ensure stakeholder engagement; 

 Thoroughly identify opportunities, issues, and concerns, and develop creative and 
meaningful responses to them; 

 Instill a broad perspective in alternatives to be considered; 

 Ensure participation by a wide demographic range, consistent with the diverse 
population of the study area and nearby neighborhoods. 

 
Public Involvement Plan Components 
 
To accomplish these objectives, the public involvement plan proposes a multi-layered approach, 
consisting of the following components: 
 

 Citizen Advisory Committee.  A CAC could help bring a broad and balanced perspective to 
this planning process.  The committee would be appointed by Council and advise the 
Commissions and Council.  The CAC is envisioned as a 9- to 12-member body, composed of 
representatives from City Boards/Commissions, representatives of City-wide interests, and 
area stakeholders. While specific composition would be determined at a later date, the CAC 
could include: 

o One member each from the Planning Commission, Transportation Commission, and 
Parks Board 

o Community representatives with a broad City-wide perspective on matters such as: 
urban design, multi-modal transportation, environmental considerations, and 
economic development 

o Area stakeholders representing Bellevue College, business and property owners, 
and nearby neighborhoods north and south of the study area, and the Potential 
Annexation Area.  

o A potential liaison from the City Council.  
  
In addition, participation of non-City agencies would be sought, either as non-voting 
members of the CAC or to serve in another advisory capacity.  This could include: 

o WSDOT 
o King County/METRO 
o Mountains to Sound Greenway 

 

 Other City Boards and Commissions.  Other City boards and commissions, including Arts, 
Human Services, and Environmental Services, may have an interest in this project and will 
be briefed as progress ensues.   



2 | P a g e  
 

 

 Community workshops/open houses.  Public workshops and/or open houses will be 
conducted at appropriate junctures in the planning process to increase opportunities for 
participation by the public at large. 

 

 Business and property owner panels.  Structured panels of business owners and property 
owners as used in the Bel-Red project were very effective at achieving two-way dialogue 
and ensuring that these key interests were well understood. 
 

 Media.  Media will be used for broad and ongoing distribution of project information.  
Opportunities for media communications include: 

o A project website will be established and maintained, to include project 
information, reports, meeting summaries, and notices of upcoming events. 

o News articles will be prepared and published in: 

 It’s Your City 

 Neighborhood News 

 News Releases (to area newspapers and TV and radio stations) 
 

 Project mailings.  Mailings of project information and upcoming events will be sent to study 
area property owners and other stakeholders, nearby residents, and nearby neighborhood 
associations.  A list of “interested parties” will be maintained and used for notification of 
project information. 
 

 Other measures will be identified as the project progresses to ensure appropriate 
engagement and participation by affected or interested parties. 

 



 

 

 

Additional Resources 
 
 
 

Additional information and background materials can be found on the project website, at:  
www.bellevuewa.gov/eastgate-corridor.htm. 
 
In addition to materials contained in this project binder, the project website includes: 
 

 City Council Powerpoint presentation (January 19, 2010) 

 Project flyer (April, 2010) 

 Report – Development Opportunities in the Eastgate/I-90 Corridor (June 2010) 

 Report – Preliminary Screening Analysis (December 2009) 

 Open House announcement and related materials (March 31, 2010) 
 
Content will continue to be added to the website as the project evolves.  Be sure to sign up for E-Alerts at 
the top of the website, so that you can be notified as updates occur. 

http://www.bellevuewa.gov/eastgate-corridor.htm



